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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
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REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS (HK$ milion) | YA K2
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Remarks: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 March

2014 are shown in brackets
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RETAILING

3.6% (3.2%)
LICENSING
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AT (BEsT)
SALES* BY PRODUCT
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9,231
60.2% (67.2%) 126.1%
GOLD & PLATINUM
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GROSS PROFIT" BY PRODUCT
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34.9% (39.8%) 119.8%
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" Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Revenue
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RETAIL SALES PERFORMANCE | Z& & XKIR
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Gem-set K E

Mainland China s &Mt

Gold & Platinum &% & 14
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Overall %88
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For the year ended 31 March

HZ3ASIBILEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
Y-0-Y Change SS8SG™
REE REHEEER

+46% +24%
+58% +36%
+25% +4%
+63% +45%
+66% +48%
+44% +29%
+48% +26%
+59% +38%
+26% +5%

SSSG (same store sales growth) represents a comparison of sales of the same self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable

periods and such data does not include sales of licensed shops.
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)FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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year ended year ended

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

BE015% BE20145
3A31H 3A31H Y-o0-Y Change
HKSm) BB &R IHFE RES(L
Revenue T A 19,215 -17.1%
Gross Profit £l 4,214 -0.1%
Operating Profit &8 &5 7l 2,309 -14.4%
Profit for the year & P 1,867 -13.2%
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders #2855 A FEAE %7 1,865 -13.4%
Basic Earnings per Share 3R EA &7 HK$2.74 7T HK$3.17 37t -13.6%
Final Dividend per Share &% A 2 & HK$0.55 #7T HK$0.638 7T -13.8%
Annual Dividend per Share Bz 2 F iz & HK$1.10# 7T HK$1.268 /57T -13.2%

Dividend Payout Ratio J& 5.t & 40.1% 40.1%
Gross Margin EF= 21.9% +2.200. HES %
Operating Margin 282 & #|= 12.0% +04p.p. HEDE
Net Margin /5 2% 9.7% +0.5p.p. [HE A E
EBITDAR:HHE  BE - ERBHART 2,432 -13.2%
EBITDA Margin R5tHIE « H18 - ERBHFIRH X 12.7% +0.6p.p. HE A E
Total Operating Expenses to Revenue Ratio 848 & (IR AL = 10.8% +2.3p.p. HES %
Effective Tax Rate EEH = 19.5% -1.20.0. A

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS | = Z 8 451Z

31 March 31 March

2015 2014
2015 20146 Y-0-Y Change
3A31H 3A31A BESL
Average Inventory Turnover (Days) P57 £ HEEE (X)) 138 +71
Inventory F & (HK$ m) (BB TT) 6,225 +18.8%
Net Cash 5 & (HKS m) (AEETT) 1,287 -69.5%

Bank Borrowings and Gold Loans S8{TEZ R &£ {EE (HKS m)

(BEBT) 568 +201.6%
Gearing Ratio 75 %2 7.4% +12.7pp. HESE
Debt-to-Equity Ratio & B bt % 24.7% +9.4p.p. [HAHE
Return on Equity (ROE) f& 5 1 3 ¢ 24.4% 5.5p.p. EE D
Current Ratio &)kt % 48 1.2
Capital Expenditure EARF% (HK$ m) (B&#TT) 184 +38.6%

1 = (Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory)/2/COGS (excluding Cost of Licensing Revenue)* Number of days for the year

= (BIEE + BIREE) 2/ ERA IR QMRS 2 K AR) *FRN B ) .
2 Gearing Ratio = (Long-term Bank Loans + Short-term Bank Loans + Bank Overdrafts + Gold Loans)/Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company
BB = (RBE Iﬁ&ﬁ%m#ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬁ% R+ RITEX + BEEE) AREEERE AREEERRHE
3 Debt-to- Equlty Ratio = (Long-term Liabilities + Short-term Liabilities)/Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company
aEgRrE=(RPABE+BHEE) AR ERSEARGERREE
4 The calculations of ROE for the year are as follows:
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year/Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company
¢W2H§$$¥ﬁ@*&IE$RLAT =, +
ISP IONGL PR IN Y E RS P PN Y ey
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CORPORATE PROFILE
EEREN

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is one of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group principally engages in the sourcing,
designing, wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a
variety of gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery
products, with a total of nearly 1,400 shops in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China, Singapore, Korea, the United States, Canada and
Australia.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 1997.

NEEE (BE) BRAR ([ARF]) REMBAR (58 [ A5g
1) IR 1991 & - BREARTEAMERZRETER L —
AEEIZNEREEHNEMIAREEMERZHRE - R
HE - BIERERTEERH - ARERBERE R - PER
Mo FTONNE - BEE KB MEAREMAHEELD 1,400
JEH o
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CORPORATE VISION

=y =
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The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value. The
Group always puts forth maximum effort for Lukfook to reach its
goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand, and as
one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned brands in the luxury
industry, the Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for
customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market.

[BAENE « BFUERZ | BAKENEEBR RmEaOERE - &
SE-—EEFME  BLBNESNBRASEHRAREENME
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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WONG Wai Sheung & &%
Chairman and Chief Executive 3 f& 3& 17 B 48 ¢
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESER

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

During the year under review, the high base effect resulting
from the “gold rushes” has been fading in the second half of
the year. However, the challenging global economic conditions,
coupled with the depreciation of currencies and relaxation of visa
requirements in other tourist destinations, dampened the desire of
Mainland visitors to shop in Hong Kong and Macau. Nevertheless,
thanks to our outstanding sales strategies, the Group successfully
increased the sales mix of gem-set jewellery products which have
higher gross margin, leading to an improved overall gross margin.
Therefore, the profit of the retail business in the Mainland China
market improved. Together with the satisfactory results of the
wholesale business, they offset the effect of the declined retail
revenue in the Hong Kong and Macau market. Accordingly, the
Group recorded good performance for the financial year 2014/15,
which exceeded our expectation. Revenue, profit attributable to
equity holders and dividend per share for the year hit their second
highest records despite some decreases when comparing to last
year, generating attractive returns for our shareholders.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group’s total
revenue amounted to HK$15,922,708,000 (2014:
HK$19,214,930,000), representing a decrease of 17.1%
over last year. Profit attributable to equity holders
decreased by 13.4% to HK$1,614,805,000 from last year’s
HK$1,864,928,000, with an earnings per share of HK$2.74
(2014: HK$3.17). The board of directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK$0.55 per share (2014:
HK$0.638) for the year ended 31 March 2015. In addition to
the paid interim dividend of HK$0.55 per share (2014: HK$0.63
per share), dividend for the financial year 2014/15 amounted to
HK$1.10 per share (2014: HK$1.268 per share). The dividend
payout ratio is approximately 40.1% on a full year basis (2014
40.1%).

Despite the slowdown of the economy, the GDP growth of
Mainland China was amongst those at the top of the world.
As a result, the Group still continued to pursue further
development in the Mainland China market. During the year
under review, the Group had 115 net newly opened shops
globally, out of which 111 were in Mainland China. The first
newly opened licensed shop in Korea extended the retail
network to eight countries and regions worldwide, including
Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, Korea, the
United States, Canada and Australia. As at 31 March 2015, the
Group had a record high total of 1,383 shops globally (2014:
1,268 shops), of which 1,319 shops (2014: 1,208 shops) were
located in Mainland China.

BRI PRR

AABREANBEEBB)BRARTAR
ADREMBAR(GREBIAERDRRIRES
REBHRE2015FI3ANBIFEZLFE
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REBEFER  BAMTRSH SIS ER
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BRERT  TERES AFEMHRA -
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EFERL  BNALEE -5 AR
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BE2015F3HAZNHILEFE  AEERBRKAR
15,922,708,0007% 7t (2014 £ : 19,214,930,000
BIL) REFRERD17T1% - BmHFH A
FEAf i I 1 2= FF 1,864,928,0005% 7T 4 13.4%
%£1,614,805,000/8 7T * MEBRAFE]F2.74%5
JL(2014%F - 3A7HETL) e AR B EEEE#ER
BE205F3ANBIEFERNABRES
f%0.555 7T (20144 : 0.638787T) * ER 2R
AR BRI B 0.558 7T (2014 F - /% 0.63
BIL) - 201415 B FERBAE R AEEZRK1.10
BT (20144F « %1268 7T) - EFIRBLL
RHU)40.1% » (20144 : 401%) °
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The Group is always dedicated to providing quality jewellery
products to customers. During the year under review, China
Gems Laboratory Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, achieved
ISO 11426 international accreditation on fire assay for gold
jewellery by the Hong Kong Accreditation Service (HKAS) and
became the only gemmological laboratory in Hong Kong that
meets the requirements of three HKAS ISO/IEC 17025 testing
accreditations. China Gems Laboratory Limited is also the
first laboratory in Hong Kong to obtain GB/T9288 national
accreditation of China in gold testing.

Furthermore, the Group entered into a three-year sightholder
rough diamond sales contract with De Beers Group of
Companies (“De Beers”), the world’s largest diamond producer
by value. We become one of the 84 sightholders of De Beers
around the globe. It further demonstrates the Group’s leading
position in the jewellery industry. The Group will be committed
to providing diversified quality products to customers for
strengthening customers’ loyalty and emotional attachment to
the brand, and enhancing the brand status of Lukfook.

OUTLOOK

Currently, the global economic situation remains uncertain.
Economic slowdown in Mainland China, the adjustment to the
policy of Individual Visit Scheme, and the overseas currency
devaluation have caused the Mainland Chinese tourists to
switch to neighbouring countries for consumption, which
affected the business growth of the Group. Therefore, the
Group remains prudent about our business development in
short term. In the coming year, the Group will strive to ultilise
cross-selling techniques and offer more products series which
are diversified and able to satisfy the mass market needs at our
shops so as to boost the sales of gem-set jewellery products
which bear higher gross margin.

AEEB-—BEATABERRHELENKEE
me REBEFER ZAEBEE TR ELK
EETHFLOERARACBBEESRITE
([HKAS]) &% - BUE = B8 A5 AR
ZAHISO 1142681 K ABAE ——HA
s 1S HKAS ISO/IEC 170257 5T 1) = 18 81 3,
RABRMKEE TP D - ZPOLEELHE
BEEKNESTEHBERIFEEGB/TI288=E &
BB ERBZHREETEFRD °

Btz oh 0 REETE B2 ERGANEAHER
De Beers Group of Companies([ De Beers]) -
BIT-FRBAELBORERBED KA
H2R4EBRNEERz —  E—FLHELX
SENGKBETE LWELI - AEE
BENTHHABERRUESEEEER MU
MEBEEHRENARENEEEERER
AR @R AL o

Al
B AT - BREREE = T AARA - o B A B
RAEABERR 2HE  MESMeEERE

FF BHHEAMKEBETMOBERHE
B OFEAKENERIER  MAKEHE
HEBRRBEERRE - RFE - AKEHK
BHOFAXIREERT  UNERHRERES
ZRERNERBMERTKNEMET - A
RABREERSEN R REEMEMZHE
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In the long run, as urbanization continues in Mainland China,
Mainland China remains to be a market with tremendous
growth potential and business opportunities. The Group will
continue to seize the market opportunities to increase the
number of shops and revenue mix of Mainland China so as
to reduce the reliance on the Hong Kong and Macau market.
The Group will also accommodate the national strategy of
“Internet+” and actively develop the e-commerce business and
draw potential customers to our offline physical stores through
online e-commerce platforms. It would help to drive product
sales and intensify the Group’s market penetration.

| would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and
other stakeholders for their strong support and contributions
to the Group’s success. Going forward, the Group will
continue to adopt pragmatic and sound growth measures,
strengthen its competitive advantages and further enhance its
leading position in the market. We look forward to generating
sustainable returns for our shareholders and establishing a new
benchmark for corporate excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015

REME BEPBEAMHENENL  PE
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SEBAEBIEEDSZE ENPEALT
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+MBEREE  BRERETHERY &
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MEREHHEE SHERBE  KERMME
AEERNTIZEEE -
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B EBBAENEMCKEOENRIIBHNE
Bl RABHRBAROHE | KEFE - A&E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Results

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the high base effect
resulting from the “gold rushes” has been fading in the third
and fourth quarters. However, slow economic recovery,
currency depreciation and relaxed visa requirements in other
popular tourist destinations such as Europe, Japan and Korea
imposed negative impact on the consumer sentiment of
tourists travelling to Hong Kong and Macau. All these hindered
the recovery of the retail business of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”). During the year under
review, the Group recorded revenue of HK$15,922,708,000
(2014: HK$19,214,930,000). Despite that there was a 17.1%
decline over that of previous year, it was the Group’s second
highest record. Benefiting from the growth in the sales mix of
gem-set jewellery products which bear relatively higher gross
margin, overall gross margin improved by 2.2 p.p. to 24.1%
(2014: 21.9%). Gross profit therefore decreased by 9.1%
only to HK$3,831,538,000 (2014: HK$4,214,154,000). Due
to the decrease in revenue, total operating expenses, though
at similar level as that of last year, had its ratio to revenue
increased to 13.1% (2014: 10.8%), which partly offset the
benefit of the increase in overall gross margin. Operating
profit decreased by 14.4% to HK$1,976,211,000 (2014:
HK$2,308,755,000). Operating margin was 12.4% (2014:
12.0%). The profit attributable to equity holders decreased
by 13.4% to HK$1,614,805,000 (2014: HK$1,864,928,000),
which was better than expected and was also the Group’s
second highest record. Basic earnings per share were
HK$2.74 (2014: HK$3.17).

BIEER LD

Overview

During the year under review, the Group opened a net total
of 111 shops (among which 115 new licensed shops were
opened and 4 self-operated shops were closed) in Mainland
China, 3 new shops in Hong Kong and 1 licensed shop in Korea
for the first time. As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total
of 1,383 shops globally in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau,
Singapore, Korea, the United States, Canada and Australia.

MEBEERR

X\
HE2015F3A31BILFE 2 #] 3
BN ASREEEZRFENFRIERE
IR EEHEE EMRPIRES N
MBI A BEEEERERRE
REZER TRKZHBRENR X’%
B2 X ?‘_‘xT/\hm.(!m)ﬁﬁE
(FZIS/AETJ)&EW%@WWWZK%J)
TEEBHNOE - REEFERN A£H
B W A A15,922,708,0005 7T (2014 4F :
19,214,930,000/%& 7T )  ® & & F & B #
171% BN AAEEHLEEEF 5 - B
REEBRSEMNE2HKEEMERHE S
LbiE R BEENEAMmMEA22@E 5
B 04.1% (20144 : 21.9%) - Atk - £ F
RN $9.1% £ 3,831,538,0007% 7T (2014
F 1 4,214,154,000%8 70) - AR WA TBE -
M%%Sﬂ?z%&éﬁifimﬁ'ﬁﬁﬂwkttﬁ
A E13.1% (20144 : 10.8%) K F -
HETEEENRRNENTE  LE /\ﬂ
T % 14.4% % 1,976,211,000 5 7T (2014 4F :
2,308,755,000 8 7T) * £ & % X £12.4%
(20144 :12.0%) - = HE AEEEF
T #13.4% & 1,614,805,000 %8 7t (2014 4 :
1,864,928,000/870) * INAAREE L L5
—5 ERES - BREARENAE2.74F T
(20144 : 3178 L) »

=
REBEFER » ALBERBBE R FEE111
MR (EhER11sMMmEE - BE4E A
BIE) NEBIGEMES  MBRAEX
1Fﬂ%ﬁ$)§§$ MR2015FE3 /31 H KEH
2 EHF1,383M/EH B RPE A -
%.5,% SEPT  FE - BBE - EE - MEK
RSB o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREE Mo

The retail business continued to be the primary sales
driver for the Group with its revenue declined by 22.3% to
HK$12,551,573,000 (2014: HK$16,163,683,000), accounting
for 78.8% (2014: 84.1%) of the Group’s total revenue. After
the completion of the acquisition of 50% interest in the issued
share capital of China Gold Silver Group Company Limited,
an operating company engaging in jewellery retailing and
franchising under the brandname of “3D-GOLD”, the Group
became one of its suppliers. Together with the increase in
number of licensed shops, the wholesale revenue grew by
14.8% over the previous year to HK$2,793,382,000 (2014:
HK$2,432,916,000), accounting for 17.6% (2014: 12.7%) of
the Group’s total revenue. Licensing revenue decreased by
6.6% to HK$577,753,000 (2014: HK$618,331,000), mainly
because gold sales returned to a relatively normal level. It
accounted for the remaining 3.6% (2014: 3.2%) of the Group’s
total revenue. Gold products remained the most favourite
item among customers and together with platinum products
contributed approximately 60.2% (2014: 67.2%) of the Group’s
total sales with a decrease of 26.1% (2014: +53.6%). Although
there was a low consumption sentiment in the overall market,
the Group was successful in maintaining the sales of gem-set
jewellery products. The mix of gem-set jewellery products of
the Group’s total sales therefore increased to 39.8% (2014:
32.8%) with its sales and gross profit tie with last year’s level.

During the year under review, the overall same store sales
growth* (“SSSG”) of the Group was -28.3% (2014: +26.2%).
SSSG for the Hong Kong and Macau market and the Mainland
China market were -28.2% (2014: +23.6%) and -29.8% (2014
+45.4%) respectively. SSSG for gold and platinum products
was -34.3% (2014: +37.9%) and that for gem-set jewellery
products was -13.8% (2014: +5.0%).

Same store sales growth represents a comparison of sales of the same
self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable periods
and such data does not include sales of licensed shops.

TEEREBNAAEBRZTZRARE  F
E WAL F L 22.3% F 12,551,573,000 75
(20144 : 16,163,683,000/5 7T) * 1h A%
B A AR 78.8% (20144 : 84.1%) « IN&E
BB ANCEZE | REXEHREZTE
RS EEER s 22BN — PEHSRE
BEHRARM0% ERE  KAHMBEER
— IEREBIEEEMEN - HEHBEIA
BEFREAER14.8%%2,793,382,0007% 7T
(20144 : 2,432,916,000/87C) * (hANEE 4
WA HI17.6% (2014 4F : 12.7%) ° R HE B U
AHRESHERERAEREKE  WAR
It 8 1 6.6% = 577,753,000 7T (2014 4F :
618,331,000 70) * G AN B &8 T LU A/
3.6%(2014%F :3.2%) B2 ERIN AR
EFEUMNER  ZRMNSEMEAEER
HERH60.2% (2014 4F : 67.2%) © $HE 5
T26.1%(20144F : +53.6%) ° 4t{F LT
SHBRSER  REBDEKNEZFKE
BEHMMEMZHEE WU KREEHMERDH
ERAEMNESUNEEAFHT MEBEER
IHE IR S E4939.8% (2014 4F : 32.8%) °

REBEFEN AEBEERER/IEHEER
(TREHEE K] B -283%(20144F :
+26.2%) BAKBFMS AR PR AT
BHREHEEERD R A -28.2% (2014 F :
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREE Mo

The Group has been striving to offer more diversified
products so that customers may have more choices. Since
2010, the Group has been endeavouring to expand the mid-
to-high-end watch business. As at 31 March 2015, the
Group was the authorised dealer carrying 38 watch brands,
including AUDEMARS PIGUET, BALL and its BALL for BMW
series, BULOVA, CERTINA, COINWATCH, CORUM, DOXA,
ENICAR, ERNEST BOREL, GRONEFELD, H. MOSER & CIE,
HAMILTON, TONINO LAMBORGHINI, LONGINES, LUDOVIC
BALLOUARD, MAURICE LACROIX, MEMORIGIN, MIDO,
OMEGA, RADO, TAG HEUER, TISSOT, URWERK, EMILE
CHOURIET, HUBLOT, ARNOLD & SON, ZENITH, ORIS,
BALMAIN, BVLGARI, EMPORIO ARMANI, BURBERRY,
VICTORINOX, ETERNA, LOUIS ERARD, RESSENCE, TOKIMA
and TRANS CONINENTS. For the year under review, the watch
business contributed a revenue of HK$320,444,000 (2014:
HK$301,176,000), representing 2.0% (2014: 1.6%) of the
Group’s total revenue with 6.4% growth over last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong and Macau

The Hong Kong market remained the key source of revenue for
the Group, contributing approximately 59.8% (2014: 62.2%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Given the high base effect and
consumers’ preference for spending in other regions, its
revenue decreased by 20.4% to HK$9,513,081,000 (2014:
HK$11,957,141,000). As at 31 March 2015, the Group
operated a total of 48 self-operated shops in Hong Kong,
while three of which were newly opened during the year under
review.

Mainland Chinese visitors continued to be the major driver for
the retail business in Hong Kong. According to the statistics
on visitor arrivals published by Hong Kong Tourism Board
in January 2015, visitors arrivals from Mainland China in
2014 grew by 16.0% over the previous year and reached
approximately 47,247,675. As mentioned in the Research Brief
on “Four Pillars and Six Industries in Hong Kong: review and
outlook” released by the Research Office of the Legislative
Council Secretariat in February 2015, Mainland Chinese visitors
contributed about one third of Hong Kong’s total retail sales
in 2013. Per capita spending by Mainland Chinese visitors
has exhibited decelerated growth because of the economic
slowdown in Mainland China, the promotion of frugality by the
Chinese government and the growing popularity of other travel
destinations. There was a trend of shorter stay period and
reduced spending on luxury items in Hong Kong by Mainland
tourists. All these led to a decrease in revenue generated by the
Group’s Hong Kong market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREE Mo

The performance of the Macau market was similar to that of
the Hong Kong market. According to the tourism statistics
published by the Statistics and Census Service of Macau
Special Administrative Region, visitor arrivals increased by
7.5% in 2014 to 31,525,600. Although the number of arrivals
increased, revenue generated from the Macau market,
given the same high base effect and consumers’ preference
for spending in other regions, decreased by 21.5% to
HK$2,264,882,000 (2014: HK$2,886,397,000), contributing
14.2% (2014: 15.0%) of the Group’s total revenue. As at
31 March 2015, the Group had a total of 10 (2014: 10) self-
operated shops in Macau.

The SSSG for gold and platinum products of Hong Kong and
Macau was -34.2% (2014: +35.6%) and that for gem-set
jewellery products was -14.9% (2014: +3.8%).

Mainland China

During the year under review, the Group successfully
boosted the sales of gem-set jewellery products in Mainland
China. Revenue from the Mainland China market was
HK$4,003,262,000 (2014: HK$4,226,770,000), representing
a slight decrease of 5.3% over last year despite the high base
effect. This accounted for 25.1% (2014: 22.0%) of the Group’s
total revenue, further reducing the Group’s business reliance
on the Hong Kong and Macau market. The sales mix of gem-
set jewellery products in Mainland China’s retail business grew
substantially from prior year’s 13.5% to 21.2% and its sales mix
in wholesale business grew from prior year’s 69.8% to 76.6%
in the year under review.

The SSSG for gold and platinum products of Mainland China
was -35.8% (2014: +48.4%) and that for gem-set jewellery
products was +10.5% (2014: +29.2%).

The Group strived to develop the Mainland China market by
extending the retail network to relatively lower-tier cities so as
to increase brand coverage. As mentioned in The World Gold
Council’s Gold Demand Trends Report, annual gold demand
totalled 3,923.7 tonnes in 2014 and the consumption demand
was still on a rising trend. In the long run, with the accelerating
urbanisation of third- and fourth-tier cities and stable increase
in per capita disposable income, the population of the middle
class will continue to grow. This will benefit the long-term
development of the gold and gem-set jewellery markets.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 79 self-operated shops
(2014: 83 self-operated shops) and 1,240 licensed shops
(2014: 1,125 licensed shops) in Mainland China, adding to a
total of 1,319 shops there (2014: 1,208 shops).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREE Mo

Overseas Development

Adhering to its motto “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the
World”, the Group has been seeking opportunities all over the
world in recent years. During the year under review, the Group
opened its first licensed shop in Korea. As at 31 March 2015,
the Group has a total of 5 overseas self-operated shops (2014:
5), including 1 in Singapore, 2 in the United States, 1 in Canada
and 1 in Australia.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were approximately HK$2,090 million (2014: approximately
HK$1,805 million). The Group’s gearing ratio at the year-
end, being proportion of total bank borrowings and gold
loans of HK$1,713 million (2014: HK$568 million) against total
shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$8,536 million (2014:
approximately HK$7,641 million), was 20.1% (2014: 7.4%). Net
cash was HK$377 million (2014: HK$1,237 million). The debt-
to-equity ratio was 34.1% (2014: 24.7%), being proportion of
total liabilities of HK$2,911 million (2014: HK$1,887 million)
against total shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$8,536
million (2014: approximately HK$7,641 million).

The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Inventory

As at 31 March 2015, to accommodate the strategy of
increasing the sales mix of gem-set jewellery products and the
need for expansion of the wholesale business, the Group raised
the inventory level of gem-set jewellery products significantly,
resulting in the total inventory balance of HK$7,395 million,
representing an increase of 18.8% when compared to last
year's HK$6,225 million. The average inventory turnover days
were 209 days (2014: 138 days).

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group incurred capital
expenditures of approximately HK$255 million (2014: HK$184
million), including the costs of properties, leasehold lands, land
use rights, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and
equipments.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had total capital commitments
approximately HK$10 million (2014: HK$414 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREE Mo

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had outstanding financial
guarantees amounting to HK$780 million (2014: Nil) issued
to several banks in respect of banking facilities granted to an
associate.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2015, the number of employees of the
Group was approximately 6,900 (2014: approximately
6,600). Remuneration policies were reviewed and approved
by the management regularly to ensure fair rewards and
compensation for employees. Remuneration packages were
structured to be comparable to the market while bonuses and
other merit payments were correlated to the performances of
the Group and the employees. Such a reward system aims
to use financial incentives to motivate employees to act in
alignment with the Group’s business performance objectives.

OUTLOOK

Due to the uncertainty of the global enonomy, economic
slowdown in Mainland China and significant decline in the
consumption of luxury goods as a result of the promotion
of frugality by the Chinese government, together with the
adjustment to the policy of Individual Visit Scheme, and the
weakening consumer sentiment of tourists, the Group remains
prudent about our business growth in the coming year.

However, the Group is optimistic about the mid- to long-
term business development. The Group will continue to utilise
cross-selling techniques, offer more product series which
are diversified and may meet mass market needs. This helps
to entice customers’ desire for consumption and boost the
sales of gem-set jewellery products which bear relatively
higher gross margin. The survey on “Mainland Jewellery
Shoppers in Chinese Cities: Purchasing Habits and the Hong
Kong Premium” published by Hong Kong Trade Development
Council indicated that most interviewees wear jewellery mostly
in “workplace and office”. The Group will thus expediently
penetrate into mid-end market by offering more affordable
jewellery products to cater for the trend of trading down
consumption.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREE Mo

With the slowing down of tourists from Mainland China, the
Group will continue to optimise the retail network in Hong Kong
to further strengthen the Group’s leading position in the Hong
Kong market. More diversified products offerings together
with pertinent promotional activities will attract more local
customer consumptions. As for the Mainland Chinese market,
the income and purchasing power of Mainland China residents
recorded a remarkable increase. However, approximately 80%
of their consumption concentrates in their own cities, with
only approximately 15% consumption expenditure in Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan. Therefore, the Group will lift the mix
of business in the Mainland China market by increasing 100
shops there, including around 20 new self-operated shops in
the coming year. The Group will adopt a prudent expansion
strategy and will continue to search for opportunities in the
overseas market.

During the year under review, China Gems Laboratory
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, achieved ISO 11426
international accreditation on fire assay for gold jewellery
and became the only gemmological laboratory in Hong Kong
that meets the requirements of three HKAS ISO/IEC 17025
testing accreditations (jadeite testing, diamond testing and
gold testing). China Gems Laboratory Limited is also the first
laboratory in Hong Kong to obtain GB/T9288 China national
accreditation in gold testing. Furthermore, the Group entered
into a three-year sightholder rough diamond sales contract
with De Beers Group of Companies (“De Beers”), the world’s
largest diamond producer by value. This made us become one
of the 84 sightholders of De Beers around the globe. It further
demonstrates the Group’s leading position in the jewellery
industry and facilitates the Group’s manufacturing of more high
quality diamond products. The Group believes that, in the long
run, high quality product offering helps to enhance customers’
brand loyalty and the Group’s overall business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREE Mo

The e-commerce business gradually prospers with consumers
from Mainland China particularly keen on shopping through
the Internet and mobile devices. According to the data
collected by China e-Business Research Center, the turnover
of online shopping market in Mainland China for the year 2014
amounted to RMB2,800 billion. The Group will actively develop
online sales platforms to create synergy between online
platforms and physical stores, which will in turn strengthen
our penetration into the Mainland China market. Currently, the
Group has nine online sales platforms, including Tmall.com,
VIP.com, JD.com and Suning.com. The Group will continue
to gain access to more online and mobile shopping platforms,
with a target to double the results of the Group’s e-commerce
business every year. It is also expected that potential
customers can be attracted to shop in our offline physical
stores by marketing, promoting and showcasing products
on the Internet through O20 model. Not only does it provide
more diverse shopping experiences for customers, it can also
integrate distribution channels to further boost the growth of
our retail business.

In the year ahead, with continuing uncertainty of global
economy, the operating environment will remain challenging.
SSSG for the first quarter this year is expected to be similar to
that of the last quarter of the year under review (i.e. January
to March 2015). However, in the long run, with the unique
geography and tax advantage of Hong Kong and Macau, the
leveraging on the cumulative brand awareness over the years,
extensive retail network, management’s effective sales strategy
and increasing per capita income of Mainland China, there
will still be strong customer demand for jewellery products.
Outlook for jewellery industry remains promising, which
will benefit the Group’s continuous business development.
Therefore, the Group will maintain its pragmatic and prudent
business strategy, and will also take a proactive approach
towards market challenges, thereby uplifting its competitive
advantage and strengthening its leading position in the
jewellery retail market.
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BRANDING
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In order to align with the branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the
Group has been building a brand image that is welcoming and
warm-hearted, and strengthening customers’ emotional
attachment to the brand through outstanding marketing
campaigns and excellent service programmes.

Meanwhile, to realise the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship,
Quality Services and Customer Orientation”, the Group is
dedicated to catering for the needs of customers and is meticulous
from product design, quality assurance to after-sales service. The
Group strives to pursue innovation and endeavours to provide
quality jewellery products and professional services for jewellery
lovers all over the world so as to boost customers’ confidence.
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BRANDING
Th R R

MARKETING CAMPAIGNS

Promotion Activities

To enhance brand awareness more strategically and strengthen
our leading position in the retail market, during the year under
review, apart from making good use of traditional promotion
platforms, the Group also captured the trend of rapid growth in
Internet usage to place advertisements on major social media
platforms, portals, video websites and search engines and
organised different types of interactive network games to further
enhance our brand exposure and focus on our targeted audience
more precisely, especially young customers, as well as enable the
Group’s distinctive image to take root in people’s minds.

Furthermore, the Group also stepped up its promotional efforts by
organising public relations activities and sponsoring various TV
programmes, movies and concerts, etc. to further strengthen the
market penetration in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Sponsorship of Beauty Pageant Contests

To tighten the connection between Lukfook and the concept of
beauty, the brand not only sponsored the diamond crown and
precious jewellery pieces for the “Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for 17
consecutive years, but also served as the exclusive sponsor of the
diamond crown for the “Miss Universe China Reignwood
Pageant” for 4 consecutive years and sponsored the “Miss
Chinese Vancouver Pageant”.
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« Lukfook Jewellery Presents: Miriam Yeung
Let’s Begin World Tour 2015
SNERE 28 - 5T ELet's Begin 2015
HRGERES

NEWRHE

« Lukfook Jewellery Presents: Excerpts of Cantonese
Operas by Lung Kim-Sang
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* Miss Hong Kong Pageant
EE/MEEE
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Product Design
= R E

Producing the finest products, with exquisite
craftsmanship and stylish designs, is one of the
core competencies of the Group. To enhance
innovation capabilites and broaden our design
team’s horizon, we arrange overseas exchange for
our design teams from time to time to apply
different design concepts on jewellery. Our
outstanding design teams are also keen on
participating in various local and international
jewellery design competitions to further boost
Lukfook’s brand image.

During the year under review, our design piece “My
Golden Generation”, which won the award at the
“Chuk Kam Jewellery Design Competition 2014”
under the Open Group, was awarded the “Gold
Jewellery Design Award” at the “Fine Jewellery
Annual Design Award 2014” held by “BAZAAR
Jewelry”. In addition, “Lovin’ Lock” 18K gold
diamond bangle from the “Love Forever”
Collection was selected as “The Most Creative
Design ltem” in the “Fashion Awards 2014” held by
“Southern Metropolis Daily”.
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Product Collections

ERR7

In light of customers’ changing demand for jewellery and
consumption pattern in recent years, the Group is diversifying its
product mix and launching new products to fulfil the needs of a
wide range of customers. The Group has introduced the
following collections, targeting the mid- to high-end consumer
markets in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and overseas:

“Love is Beauty” Collection

For this popular product series, our designers incorporated the
concepts of love and beauty by embedding sparkling hearts in
diamond jewellery.

“Love Forever” Collection

Promoted in collaboration with our celebrity endorser Mr.
Lam-Fung across Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China, the
“Love Forever” collection of couples’ jewellery with the
abbreviation for “Love Forever” — “LF” — has successfully
captured the younger generation market segment.
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“Rilakkuma™” Collection

Featuring the super popular cartoon character Rilakkuma™, the Rilakkuma™ Collection of
exquisite jewellery accessories was exclusively launched in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China.

“Hugging Family” Collection

Focusing on the theme of “Love”, the “Hugging Family” Collection features the adorable
smiling characters of the happy family. This series of cute gold jewellery is meticulously
crafted to share every precious, delightful moment with every family member.

“Wedding” Collection

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Civil Affairs of the People’s Republic of
China, there has been on average nearly 13 million pairs of newlyweds per year for the past
5 years. In order to seize this valuable business opportunity of the wedding market, the
Group has strategically launched a wide array of Chinese and western wedding products
such as the “Beloved” Collection of gold wedding jewellery, the Wedding Collection of
diamond jewellery and the Platinum Bridal Collection which is introduced in cooperation with
Platinum Guild International.
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BRANDING
Th R TR

QUALITY ASSURANCE

The Group puts emphasis on quality control and authentication to
boost consumers’ confidence, and is meticulous from raw
materials procurement to authentication. In 1996, China Gems
Laboratory Limited (“CGL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, was established for the purpose of providing services
including authentication and grading of diamonds, authentication
of jadeite jade and coloured gemstones, and quality assessment
for jewellery. The laboratory is operated by a group of experienced
and certified gemologists specialising in the authentication of
gemstones and jadeite jade.

During the year under review, CGL has passed the assessment of
Hong Kong Accreditation Service again and successfully
obtained ISO 11426 accreditation in gold testing. The laboratory is
now authorised to issue internationally recognised gold test
reports and is the only laboratory in Hong Kong that meets the
requirements of three HKAS ISO/IEC 17025 accreditations in
jadeite jade testing, diamond testing and gold testing. In addition,
CGL is the first laboratory in Hong Kong to obtain GB/T9288
accreditation in gold testing, demonstrating our dedication to
providing customers with quality products over the vyears.
Furthermore, the laboratory also meets the ISO 9001:2008 Quiality
Management Systems Requirements, affirming its international
level quality assurance system.

In order to continuously improve product quality assurance and
further strengthen customers’ confidence, during the year under
review, the Group has participated in the “Natural Diamond
Quality Assurance” Mark scheme launched by the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong in 2014 and successfully obtained the
qualification for this mark after assessment.

The Group’s jewellery processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou,
also meets the ISO 9001 Quality Management Systems
Requirements, affirming its international standard quality
assurance system and professionally recognised product quality
standard.
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BRANDING
i hER 2R S
EXCELLENT SERVICE

Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would not
be successful without a commitment to service excellence.
Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interest in our operational management. In line with the
branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the “Delivering the Beauty of
Love with Six Heartfelt Services” excellent customer service
programme was introduced to fulfil customers’ need with a caring
heart and offer sincere quality services for customers with a view
to relaying the culture of Six Heartfelt Services to each customer
all over the world.

For continuous optimisation and improvement of services, the
Group engaged an independent agency to conduct mystery
shopper services regularly to assess Lukfook’s products and
quality of service. Meanwhile, the Group also carried out
customer satisfaction surveys in striving for excellence to cater to
customers’ changing needs and strengthen the Group's
competitiveness in the market. Currently, the tailored and
professional advice provided by our sales team as well as the
complimentary services such as free engraving and certificates
for jadeite and diamond are well-received by customers.

The Group’s efforts to serve its customers to the highest calibre
and make a valuable contribution to the jewellery industry have
been recognised with a wide array of awards for management
excellence and high-quality products and services. These
included:

. “Hong Kong Service Awards 2015 — Quality Living Category
(Jewellery and Gold)” from “East Week Magazine”

o “2014 Most ‘LIKE’
Message” Magazine

Jewellery Brand” from “Wedding
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BRANDING
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SHOPPING EXPERIENCE

To provide a distinctive shopping experience for customers, the
Group is committed to creating a gentle yet noble shopping
environment by using luminous materials such as mirrors and
metal steel etc. with leather interspersed throughout its shops to
create a more distinct three-dimensional and multi-layered effect.
We offer a wide variety of jewellery and superior shopping
services for customers to enjoy unparalleled shopping
experience.

Moreover, during the year under review, we participated in a
number of wedding expos and trade shows in Hong Kong and
Mainland China not only to offer our customers the opportunity to
experience Lukfook’s sincere quality services apart from our
shops, but also to increase the brand exposure and capture new
business opportunity.

BRANDING AWARDS

During the year under review, Lukfook’s continuous efforts in
brand building have resulted in numerous awards and recognition.
These included:

° “Top 10 Retailers in the Hong Kong Market” and
“Best-of-the-Best Retailers Award — Hong Kong” in “2014
Retail Asia-Pacific Top 500 Awards”

° “Greater China Super Brands Award 2014” from “East Week
Magazine”

° “Hong Kong Star Brand Award 2014 — Enterprise” from the
Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises Association

° “The Excellence of Listed Enterprise Awards 2014” from
“Capital Weekly” Magazine

° “Influential Brand Award 2014 (Fine Jewellery)” from “Ray Li
Yi Ren Feng Shang” Magazine

° “Popular Jewellery Brand in Shanghai” from “Shanghai
Morning Post”

° “Most Popular Brand for Consumers”, “Most Credible
Brand” and “Best Brand for After-sales Service” in the “2nd
Top 5 Chinese Jewellery Brand Contest”

° “Best Partner Award” from Citibank
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

f=E Ful--5-¥ e

Adhering to its commitment to reciprocate the society, the Group
has actively supported a variety of charity and community
programmes, and it continues to work hand in hand with its staff
to fulfil the corporate social responsibility and make meaningful
contributions to society, hoping to convert love into blessing and
pass it out through community programmes.

During the year under review, the Group specially launched the
“Love is Beauty” diamond pendant perfume bottle charity gift set
in its over 1,300 shops globally and donated a portion of proceeds
to the “Free Lunch for Children Fund”, which is initiated by China
Social Welfare Foundation to provide free lunch for poor children
in Mainland China and protect them from starvation and help
them grow up healthily.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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Besides, the Group also sponsored many charity activities. Below
are some highlights:

o “Lukfook Jewellery Presents: Life Reborn Charity Night”
organised by Lions Kidney Educational Centre & Research
Foundation

° “Tung Wah Charity Gala 2014” held by the Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals

° “Sedan Chair Race & Bazaar” held by the Sedan Chair
Charities Fund

° “Food Angel” food recycle and assistance programme

o “Baby Kingdom Baby Charity Walkathon 2014”

° “Lifeline Express Charity Auction” held by Lifeline Express in
Beijing and Shenzhen

Apart from being named a “5 Years Plus Caring Company” by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service, the Group also received
other recognitions that affirm its continued efforts in fulfilling
corporate social responsibility. Below are some highlights:

° First Runner-up in “Ordering Oxfam Rice (Organization
Category)” and “Award for Three Consecutive Years of
Support” in “Oxfam Rice Sale 2014”

° “Caring Enterprise” in “2014 BOSS Absolute Influence
Charity Ceremony”
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection
and incorporates relevant strategies and measures in every
aspect of its business. It also implements sustainable initiatives in
areas such as energy saving, waste management and carbon
reduction into its manufacturing, administration and daily retail
operations. The Group’s jewellery processing plant in Nansha,
Guangzhou attained certification as an SO 14001: 2004
Environmental Management System, demonstrating its effective,
efficient and environmentally friendly manufacturing process.

To promote environmental protection proactively, the Group has
been promoting the use of electronic corporate communication to
replace printed materials, which further reduced the paper
consumption to save the Earth’s resources. Besides, the Group
put “Full Implementation of the Plastic Shopping Bag Charging”
into effect on 1 April 2015. All the charges collected will be
donated to environmental protection organisations for promoting
waste reduction and environmental education.

The Group has received numerous awards in recognition of its
continuous dedication to environmental protection. These
included:

° Won “Prime Awards for Eco-Business” for three consecutive
years and “Eco Jewellery Corporation (Gold Award)” from
MetroBox

° Luk Fook Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited and Lee
Fook Diamond and Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company
Limited won the “5 Years + Entrant” and “Green Participant”
and “Green Medal” respectively in the “Hang Seng Pan
Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards 2013/14”

o Maxigood (Guangzhou) Jewellery Co. Ltd. passed the audit
of the “Hong Kong - Guangdong Cleaner Production
Partners Recognition Scheme” jointly organised by the
Environment Bureau of Hong Kong, the Economic &
Information Commission of Guangdong Province and the
major trade and industry associations in Hong Kong, and
was commended as “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner
Production Partners (Manufacturing)”

BIRERE

AEESERERRRFRE  WAHEBRNS EEGE
FIRTABRIRIR R B S IE b - W EneE - BEMEE A
MEMFELREEBALE THAAETEE
B o AEEBEMREMNT R ENIRE N LHEE
131S0O 14001:2004 R E R E R RE - EEAKE
HETHFARSERGZBEFARRRE -

RIEBIEEIRIR - N EBEEEE AT F LA RIRAE
REET Y BFREARNEAZ FEERMIKE
TR EON REEFE B A2015F4 1B E i (2 E
TEBREYRRE) PHE2BRBEYRKE 28
BRETRRER AN EESREEE  UEKRREE
Ttk

AEBEERRTIELNTEHENEZ R EFE
T

o EB-FHRE [HMATRREER] WER
PRRKERE (£58) | 8815 f (Bm A
) FERER I

o EINEMNSREHBERARLEMNFEEAY
#AR AT DRI 201314842 k=A%
RREE | R [SF+2H |~ [HEFTEA
Al &k [ eREA7 ]

o BETENE (EM) BHAERAR BBHE
ARERITREBFRER ERELBEMES
CZEELEBIEZTEHERSH SRR

BRBREENA] BRI 2B R L
B3 [BREBREENN (BESX) | 15

24 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 725 E (B BRE AT



HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

AT ERER

Employees are our most valuable asset and significant
competitive advantage. In order to develop the engagement and
professionalism of its staff and retain high-caliber talent, the
Group provides comprehensive training programmes for staff of
various levels of experience and expertise. In addition to our Hong
Kong head office and online study platform, four regional training
centers have been established in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou
and Wuhan, and tailored training programmes have been
implemented for staff. The Group also encourages and sponsors
employees to participate in professional training programmes
held by international institutes and the “Qualifications Framework
(QF)” test conducted by the Education Bureau of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, which aim to help people further
enhance their competitiveness and expand their capacity through
continuous learning.

At the same time, the Group attaches great importance to the
holistic development and welfare of staff through introducing clear
promotion mechanisms and incentive schemes. In addition, the
Group endeavors to optimise the staff benefit programmes to
strengthen their individual development and build their sense of
belonging.

During the year under review, the Group received several awards,
affirming its outstanding achievements in manpower training and
employee care:

o “Manpower Developer” awarded again by the Employees
Retraining Board

o “Happy Company” label in the “Happiness-at-Work
Promotional Scheme 2014” organised by the Promoting
Happiness Index Foundation and the Hong Kong
Productivity Council

o Received a Certificate of Commendation for its outstanding
performance in promoting Recognition of Prior Learning
and developing SCS-based Courses, and four front line
employees won awards in the “Award Scheme for Learning
Experiences”
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) recognises that sound and effective
corporate governance practices and procedures, with an
emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’
value and safeguard the shareholders’ interest. The Company
is committed to maintaining a good corporate governance
standard and endeavors to ensure that its businesses are
conducted in accordance with all applicable rules and
regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) through the year ended 31 March 2015,
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, so that there is a clear
division of responsibilities for the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Group’s business to
ensure a balance of power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from
the Mainland China market, it is believed that Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung being the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company will further enhance the business development of the
Group in the Mainland China market due to the norms in the
Mainland China market on “status parity” when future business
negotiations are conducted in Mainland China. Besides,
members of the Board also include qualified professionals
and other prominent and experienced individuals from our
community. The Board considers that the existing Board
composition, with the support of Board Committees and
two Deputy Chairmen, can ensure a balance of power and
authority.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company is
not, or was not for any part of the year ended 31 March 2015,
in compliance with the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, it is confirmed
that all directors have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the year ended 31
March 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

() Board Composition
The Board currently comprises five executive directors,
four non-executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors. They include persons with a
wealth of practical experiences in the jewellery industry,
accountancy profession, general trading, securities
industry and banking industry. There is a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate for the requirements of the
Company’s business. The current composition of the
Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

The biographical details of the directors are set out
in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 44 to 52
of this Annual Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EFS @
(i) Attendance Records at the Board, Committees (i) EEE®H ZESEFERBEKX
and General Meetings BZHBRE R
The attendance records of the individual directors at BRIEENRE 220153831 BIEF
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, ERTrvEFTee: BERETE®
Remuneration Committee and general meetings for the % BT Eeen M Eeex
year ended 31 March 2015 are set out as follows: ERERE 7 HELDEHNIT :
No. of Meetings Attended/Held
HE/ STEERR
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee = Committee ~ Committee General
Directors g EFE EREAY REZRE FHZERE REAFXE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung BEERE 44 NIATER 11 212 n
(Chairman & Chief Executive) (Note 1) (ZTEETBER)W##1)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen MWEEE 44 NATER 1 2/2 1
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 2) (BIZE)(H#2)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung InBat 44 NATER  NATER  NATER 11
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy EL B G 44 NATER  NATER  NATER 1
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping BEALT 44 NIAPER N/AZ N/AN A 11
Non-executive Directors FUfTES
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny BiEEAE 44 NATEE  NATER  NATER 1
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 3) (BIZE)(H#23)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline REERZL 34 NATER N/A & N/ANER i
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FREATAL 44 NATEE  NATER NATER 1
Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP TEEMHA T4 L 44 NIATER N/AT i A N/AT i A il
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIFHTES
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander HERTE 4/4 313 11 212 i
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP EHBGBSATHT 44 3/3 il 2/ il
Mr. FOK Kwong Man (Note 4) EENSEEMH) 4/4 3/3 1/1 2/2 1
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BXREE 4/4 3/3 1/1 2/2 11
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BREATET 4/4 3/3 1/1 2/2 1
Notes: B FE

1.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was re-elected as the Chairman of the Company
with effect from 20 August 2014.

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the

Mr. FOK Kwong Man passed away and ceased to be an independent non-

2.

Company with effect from 20 August 2014.
3.

Company with effect from 20 August 2014.
4.

executive director on 18 June 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iii)

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership
of the Company within a framework of prudent and
effective controls which enables risk to be assessed and
managed. The Board controls the business but delegates
day-to-day responsibility to the executive management.
The Board sets the Company’s strategic aims, values
and standards and ensures that its obligations to its
shareholders and others are understood and met.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. The
Board gives clear directions to management as to the
matters that must be approved by the Board before
decisions are made on behalf of the Company.

All the directors of the Company have full and timely
access to all relevant information and have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company, with a view to ensuring that all proper
Board procedures, applicable rules and regulations are
followed. All the directors including the independent non-
executive directors may seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense in carrying out their functions, upon making
request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

EFT(#E)
(iii) EFEREREHHESE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

30

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan,
Stephen, Mr. FOK Kwong Man (deceased and ceased
to be an independent non-executive director on 18 June
2015), Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and Ms. WONG Yu Pok,
Marina an annual confirmation of his or her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and, having
taken into account the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules in assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors, considered that all
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015 and up
to the date of this Annual Report, the Board had at
all times met the requirements under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

However, following the passing away of Mr. FOK
Kwong Man on 18 June 2015, he was ceased to be an
independent non-executive director of the Company.
There remained four independent non-executive
directors. The number of independent non-executive
directors cannot represent at least one-third of the Board
as required under the Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has been identifying a suitable candidate
to fill the vacancy with a view to fulfilling the requirement
of the Listing Rules as soon as practicable within three
months from 18 June 2015 pursuant to the Rule 3.11
of the Listing Rules. Further announcement on the
appointment of independent non-executive director will
be made in due course.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

EEER)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(vii)

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive
professional training programs arranged by the Company
during their terms of appointment covering the topics
of corporate governance, update on the Listing Rules
and other regulatory development at the expense of the
Company. Directors were encouraged by the Company to
participate in the relevant continuous professional training
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company has also arranged for consultants to provide
training programs. The average training hours of the
directors were not less than 6 hours.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
arranged a seminar covering proposed amendments
to the Code regarding risk management and internal
control. Directors’ training records during the year are
summarised as follows:

EFEFgm
(vii) EEMIBFEERE

MEEFETHNOARSESLAR
AIREZHNEXEEI REBRREEE
ER J:m%EEIJZE%ﬁ&EI@E“*%*J:
B HEAEBERBAARAEE - AR
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e AN B F E RIS SRR -
W EBEMEIRESESmnT

Training on regulatory development,

directors profession or duties,
or other relevant topics

FHREERR EFEXIRAN
Directors EE H 10 R B R s Al
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung BEEERLE v
(Chairman & Chief Executive) (FEETHAH)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HHWEEE v
(Deputy Chairman) (F1F5)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung FrBrt v
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BERFLtT v
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping BEkLt v
Non-executive Directors FBTES
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny ERELE v
(Deputy Chairman) (F1E5)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline SER LT v
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FRP ATt v
Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP FEUMHAF M+ v
Independent Non-executive Directors BAEBTES
Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander HERTE v
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP 55 GBS A P+ v
Mr. FOK Kwong Man (Deceased and ceased EENLAE(R2015F6 A18 B At - %
to be an independent non-executive director TArBAEBUENTES)
on 18 June 2015)
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BoxBRusE v
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BABEATHL v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of its
strategy and in the achievement of its objectives and ensures
that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
the Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and
reliable information. The Chief Executive is delegated with
the authority and responsible for running the Company’s
business, implementing the Company’s strategies in achieving
business objectives. Both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive positions are currently held by Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, an executive director. The Board believes that the
current governance structure, with a combined Chairman and
Chief Executive and a vast majority of non-executive directors
provides an effective balance of power and authority for
the management of the Company in the best interest of the
Company at the present stage.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established three Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee for overseeing the respective
aspects of the Group’s affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in appropriate circumstances.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February
1999 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Until
the passing away of Mr. FOK Kwong Man on 18 June
2015, the Audit Committee was chaired by Mr. FOK
Kwong Man with four other members namely, Mr. TAI
Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and Ms. WONG Yu Pok,
Marina, all of whom being the independent non-executive
directors. Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander has served
as the Chairman of the Audit Committee since 22 June
2015. In compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, majority of the members possess appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

U]

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to discuss and review,
inter alia, the interim and annual financial statements,
the submission and publication of the interim and annual
reports, the disclosures in the Corporate Governance
Report, the corporate governance and compliance status
of the Code and the internal audit plan and functions of
the Group.

The Company believes a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of management, the external auditors
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the
effective functioning of an audit committee. The Board
is responsible for selecting appropriate accounting
policies and the preparation of the financial statements.
The external auditors are responsible for auditing
and attesting to the Group’s financial statements and
evaluating the Group’s system of internal controls, to the
extent that they consider necessary to support their audit
report. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing
the entire process.

The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include:

° reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements and the interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board for approval;

° reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or external
auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor, and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

o approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditor and making
recommendation on the appointment,
re-appointment or removal of the external auditor;
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(ii)

34

Audit Committee (Continued)

° reviewing the internal audit programme and
ensuring the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and effective, and considering any major
findings of internal control matters;

o reviewing the financial control, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group and
ensuring the management has discharged its
duty to have an effective internal control system,
in particular, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function; and

o reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2015, the arrangement for employees
and stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Until
18 June 2015, the Nomination Committee was chaired by
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, being an independent
non-executive director, with six other members namely,
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. IP
Shu Kwan, Stephen, Mr. FOK Kwong Man (deceased
and ceased to be an independent non-executive director
on 18 June 2015), Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, and Ms.
WONG Yu Pok, Marina, majority of whom being the
independent non-executive directors. Starting from 22
June 2015, the Nomination Committee is chaired by
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, being an independent non-
executive director, with five other members namely Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. TAl
Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen and
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, majority of whom being the
independent non-executive directors.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, review and make
recommendation to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the retirement
and rotation plan of the directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration
to succession planning for directors and senior
management, identifying individual suitably qualified
to become Board members and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors. In order to achieve a balanced and
appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination Committee
is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition, including the skills, knowledge, diversity
and experience, of the Board, and advising the Board as
to any changes that may be required. The Nomination
Committee has the authority given by the Board to
seek external professional advice in the selection and
recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulfil
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at
Board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage. As such, the Company adopted
a board diversity policy during the year. In achieving a
truly diverse Board, candidates with different talents,
skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, age,
gender and other qualities may be selected as members
of the Board. Selection of candidates is based on a range
of diversity perspectives. The ultimate decision is based
on merit and contribution which would be brought by
the candidates to the Board if he/she was selected as a
director. The Nomination Committee is of the view that
the current composition of the Board has achieved the
objectives set in the above board diversity policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7
April 2005 with written terms of reference posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Until
18 June 2015, the Remuneration Committee was chaired
by Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, being an independent non-
executive director, with six other members namely, Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. TAI Kwok
Leung, Alexander, Mr. FOK Kwong Man (deceased and
ceased to be an independent non-executive director on
18 June 2015), Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and Ms. WONG
Yu Pok, Marina. On 22 June 2015, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen
was replaced by Ms. WONG Hau Yeung to be a member
of the Remuneration Committee. Majority of whom are
the independent non-executive directors. Starting from
22 June 2015, the Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, being an independent
non-executive director, with five other members namely,
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, Mr. TAI
Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, majority of whom being the
independent non-executive directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iii) Remuneration Committee (Continued)
The principal role and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee mainly include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy, structure and packages for all remuneration
of directors and senior management; reviewing and
approving performance based remuneration and
the terms of service contracts of the directors and
senior management; reviewing and approving the
compensation payable in connection with any loss or
termination of office or appointment of directors and
senior management; overseeing any major changes in
employee benefits structures throughout the Company or
the Group; and reviewing the on-going appropriateness
of the remuneration policy. No director or senior
management determined his/her own remuneration
package.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the year to review the policies for determining annual
salary increments for the calendar year 2015, to approve
the payment of the discretionary year-end bonus for
2014 and a performance bonus scheme for all non-sales
employees working at the Head Office.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and the remuneration of the members of the
senior management by band during the year are set out in
Note 16 to the financial statements on pages 119 to 122
of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Certified Public Accountants, were as follows:
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2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAETT

Audit services Ea RS 4,520 4,064
Non-audit services JEEFT RS

- Review service —BE R 520 354

— Tax related service — T 75 48 B AR 7% 579 236

— IT security review service —EBMEASRLEEN RS 320 -

— Financial and tax —BEEREERES - 1,900

diligence and deal advisory MR 5
Total BET 5,939 6,554

The responsibilities of external auditor with respect to financial
reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of each financial period, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the
end of the financial period and of the result and cash flows of
the Group for the year. In the Company’s interim and annual
reports which are issued within the time limits stipulated by
the Listing Rules, the Board presents a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The published financial statements
adopt, and consistently apply, suitable accounting policies
complying with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures the Company maintains sound and effective
internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ interest and the
Company’s assets. The Audit Committee, with the assistance
of the Internal Audit Team, regularly reviews the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control system. The Head of the
Internal Audit Team directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines
for considering how it will apply the financial reporting and
internal control principles and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s external auditors. The Audit
Committee established by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules has clear terms of reference.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

In order to achieve enhanced corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the
Audit Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance, the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the code of
conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and
the directors, and the Company’s compliance with the Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report. During
the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties relating to
corporate governance matters as aforementioned.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the company secretary undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update the skills and knowledge.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee.

The internal control system is designed to provide assurance
on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of
business record, and the compliance with Company’s policies
and procedures.

The system aims to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems, and to ensure
achievement of the Company’s objectives.

The Audit Committee has received the internal control
evaluation report submitted by the Internal Audit Team. The
report summarised information relating to the work carried out
in the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control
procedures, assets, and financial records of the
Company;

° a general evaluation of internal control system installed by
the Company; and

° an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during
the year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the report and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an examination of the
internal control system has been adequately executed by the
Internal Audit Team and the Audit Committee acknowledged
that the management has been progressively implementing
an adequate internal control system in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken
by the Internal Audit Team reporting administratively to the
Company’s management and reporting functionally to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Team is authorised to obtain all
information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

A risk based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal
Audit Team. Internal control reviews are arranged regularly
while paying close attention to business or operation changes.
Regular audit tests are carried out to ensure key controls are in
operation. The Internal Audit Team conducts other projects and
investigating work as may be required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with
respective department heads to have actions agreed and
subsequently followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory
control is maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Team are agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary
of the internal audit activities and audit results are also
submitted to the Audit Committee twice a year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition
requiring a special general meeting (“SGM”) to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (i) must state the purposes
of the SGM, and (i) must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company, and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of
three months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A
SGM convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be
convened by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Procedures for putting forward proposal at
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, either any number of shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
or not less than 100 shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (i) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and (ii) circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company (contact
details are disclosed in section headed “Corporate
Information”) with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution or not less than one week before the meeting in case
of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose
for election as a director is posted on the website of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, endeavors to provide transparency and uses
the annual general meetings and investors’ conferences, to
communicate with shareholders and invites their participation
in certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s official
website serves as a handy communication channel for the
shareholders. Press releases and announcements about the
Company’s business affairs are made from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting
by poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance
with the requirements regarding voting by poll contained in the
Listing Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary at
the Company’s business address in Hong Kong at Luk Fook
Jewellery Centre, No. 239 Temple Street, Jordan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. Shareholders may also make proposals at the
general meetings.

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 March
2015.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of
gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery products.

An analysis of the performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year by operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 61.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.55 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$324,009,000 which was paid on
19 December 2014.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.55 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:
HK$0.638 per share) to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 25 August 2015.
Taking into account of the interim dividend payment, the total
dividend for the year would amount to HK$1.1 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$648,018,000 for the year (2014: HK$1.268
per ordinary share, totalling HK$746,989,000). Subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 19 August 2015, the
final dividend will be paid on or around 3 September 2015.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 32 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$4,250,000 (2014: HK$1,159,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2015,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$1,099,747,000 (2014: HK$1,102,278,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the
last five financial years ended 31 March are as follows:
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2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FET FET FET
Results ¥
Revenue WA 15,922,708 19,214,930 13,411,691 11,907,440 8,091,121
Profit attributable to equity N2 RIEZIFAE A
holders of the Company &5 i 7 1,614,805 1,864,928 1,242,951 1,355,523 879,989
Assets and liabilities HERARE
Total assets BEE 11,511,237 9,586,156 7,561,875 6,738,461 4,281,699
Total liabilities BEE 2,910,730 1,887,001 1,084,282 1,094,179 823,311
Shareholders’ funds [RE S 8,536,363 7,640,769 6,424,748 5,595,524 3,423,681

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Save as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2015 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP
Mr. FOK Kwong Man (Deceased and ceased to be
an independent non-executive director on 18 June 2015)
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company. Accordingly,
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping,
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, Mr. HUI Chiu Chung and Mr.
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen shall retire from office by rotation at
the AGM. All the retiring directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM. Details of the proposed
directors to be re-elected are set out in the circular sent
together with this Annual Report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 64, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive and Executive Director of the Group. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. WONG has over 48 years of experience in the
jewellery industry and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He is a member of the
Guangzhou Huadu District Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Associate
Director of The Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel Merchant’s Staff
Association, the Honorary Permanent Chairman of Hong Kong
Jade Association, the Chairman of Supervisory Committee of
The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association, the Honorary Chairman of
Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, the Honorary Chairman of the First
General Committee of Guangdong Golden Jewelry and Jade
Industry’s Association, the Honorary Vice-president of the Gems
& Jewelry Trade Association of China, the Honorary Chairman
of the Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises Association,
the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’
Association as well as the President of Hong Kong Precious
Metals Traders Association Limited. He is also the elected
member of General Committee of Hong Kong Brand Development
Council. Mr. WONG is the father of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny,
Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director of the Company
and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy
Business Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 64, is the co-founder of the
Group. Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive
Director and Deputy General Manager of the Group. He is also
a member of the Nomination Committee. He has over 42 years
of experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible
for the merchandising, operation and administration of the
Group’s retail shops and the production in Mainland China.
Mr. TSE is an executive committee member of the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd., a supervisory committee
member of the Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society, the
Vice-Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones,
Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association, the
Life Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Tsuen Wan Industries
and Commerce Association Limited, the Vice President of
the Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings Organizing Committee, the
Honorary President of the 32nd session of Hong Kong Kwun
Tong Junior Police Call, a Vice Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s
Guild, the Honorary President of the Cheung Ching Friends
Association, the Director of Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Foshan
and Zhaoging Friendship Association, a member of Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Jewellery Advisory Committee,
the Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Community Committee
for Celebration of Reunification of Hong Kong with China, the
Vice President of Zhaoging Overseas Friendship Association,
the Honorary Consultant of Shatin Friends Society and an
Executive Committee Member of Hong Kong Jewellers’ &
Goldsmiths’ Association. Moreover, Mr. TSE was awarded the
“Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service” by
the Government of the Hong Kong SAR.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 42, is the Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Group. Ms. WONG is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee. She initially joined
the Group in 1994 and served various departments for about
7 years until 2002. Ms. WONG rejoined the Group in 2004.
Currently, she is responsible for the development and operation
management for the Group’s business. She holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from University of Southern
Queensland. Besides, Ms. WONG is a member of the Liaison
Committee of Guangzhou Panyu District Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Director of Gemmolocial Association of Fujian, a member of
the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee and the
Honorary Life President of Hong Kong Pun Yue Industrial and
Commercial Fellowship Association. She has over 21 years of
experience in the jewellery industry.

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 34, is the Executive
Director and Deputy Business Director of the Group. She joined
the Group in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing
the Group’s overall business strategies. She is also responsible
for the execution of the Group’s marketing policies. Ms. WONG
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from the University of
Toronto, Canada and a Master’s Degree of Science in China
Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
She is also a Certified Public Accountant of the United States
of America. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. WONG worked for
an international professional accounting firm in Hong Kong,
where she performed auditing and accounting assignments for
a variety of business organizations including listed companies.
She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2007. She
at present is a Co-opted Member of the Marketing Activities
Committee of the Quality Tourism Services Association. Ms.
WONG is the daughter of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s
Chairman, Chief Executive and Executive Director and the
sister of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and
Non-executive Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 45, is the Executive Director
and Deputy Product Development Director of the Group. She
has over 27 years of experience in the jewellery industry. She
joined the Group in 1990 and is mainly responsible for product
development, jewellery purchasing, wholesaling and retailing
business of the Group. Ms. CHUNG frequently visits jewellery
exhibitions worldwide for product discovery and sourcing the
finest jewellery and jewellery parts for the Group. In 2001, Ms.
CHUNG won the Best of Show Award for her design “Flashing”
in the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She
received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004. Ms. CHUNG
is the Executive Committee Member of Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association, a Director of the 5th Congress
of Gemmolocial Association of Fujian and a fellow of the
Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector
Limited.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 38, is the Deputy
Chairman and Non-executive Director of the Group. He is also
the Chief Executive Officer and Director of China Gold Silver
Company Limited, an associated company of the Company
which conducts the jewellery retail and franchise business
under the brandname of “8D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China. He joined the Group as the Operations
Manager in 2002. Mr. Danny WONG is an active participant in
the community and is currently a Standing Committee member
for Sihui County, Guangdong Province, of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference; Permanent President of Sze
Wui and Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong)
Limited; a Supervisory Committee member of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association and the Honorary President of Junior
Police Call of Kwai Tsing District. In December 2008, Mr.
Danny WONG received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title. He
is the son of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman,
Chief Executive and Executive Director and the elder brother
of Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy
Business Director of the Company.

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 48, is the co-founder
of the Group. Ms. YEUNG has over 27 years of experience
in public relations. Ms. YEUNG was the winner of Miss Hong
Kong and Miss International of Goodwill in 1987, and also the
4th Runner-up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Ms.
YEUNG was also the President of the Wai Yin Association for
the year 1995-1996. She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate
title in 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 68, joined the Group in
1997. He was re-designated from Independent Non-executive
Director to Non-executive Director of the Company on 1
October 2011, owing to changes in factors concerning his
independence. Mr. HUI was then resigned both as Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. HUI has 44 years of
experience in the securities and investment industry. Mr. HUI
had for years been serving as a Council Member and Vice
Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
a member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission, Director of the Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the Listing
Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
an appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal
Tribunal, a member of Standing Committee on Company Law
Reform, a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment
Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
and also an appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr. HUI
was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of
the Peace in 2004 and was also appointed a member of the
Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in 2006. He had also been a member
of Government “Appointees” (independent member) of Appeal
Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. HUI
also serves as Independent Non-executive Director of Zhuhai
Holdings Investment Group Limited (Stock Code: 0908),
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1212),
Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited
(Stock Code: 0535), China South City Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1668), SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. (Stock
Code: 2386) and Agile Property Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3383) whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He was an Independent Non-executive Director
of Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0711)
and Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (Stock Code:
0388) until his resignation effective from 1 February 2015 and
his retirement effective from 29 April 2015 respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP, aged 58, has been appointed
as Non-executive Director of the Company since 1 October
2011. Mr. LI holds a Diploma of Architectural Design from
Humber College of Toronto, Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’s
of Architecture from New York Institute of Technology. Mr.
LI was awarded the Certificate of Registration Authorized
Person (List of Architects) by the Government of the HKSAR in
1989. In professional qualification aspect, Mr. LI is a Fellow of
Hong Kong Institute of Architects and a Member of Architect
Registration Board and Royal Institute of British Architects. He
also got the PRC Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification.
Mr. LI has extensive architecture experience and is a Director of
Li & Siu Associates Ltd. and A. Li & Associates Architects Ltd.
In addition, he is a Director of Keen Mind Kindergarten. Mr. LI
was appointed as a District Council Member of Sham Shui Po
District from 2000 to 2007 and awarded the Chief Executive’s
Commendation For Community Service and Medal of Honor.
He was also appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a
Justice of the Peace in 2008. Mr. LI has been appointed to
various positions over the years including: Chairman of Sham
Shui Po District Office (East Liaison Team), Chairman of Sham
Shui Po District Fire Safety Committee, Chairman of Sham
Shui Po Council for the Promotion of Cultural and Recreation
Service Limited, Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fight Crime
Committee, President of Sham Shui Po District Junior Police
Call, Honorary President of Kowloon City District Junior Police
Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents Association Ltd.,
President of Police Dragon Boat Club and Chartered President
of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAlI Kwok Leung, Alexander, aged 57, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
July 2008 and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. TAI graduated from Victoria
University of Wellington in New Zealand with a degree in
Bachelor of Commerce and Administration in 1982 and
became an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 1983. Mr. TAIl has extensive
accountancy, corporate finance and investment experience
in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. TAl is an executive director
of Investec Capital Asia Limited (formerly known as Access
Capital Asia Limited), a licensed corporation under the SFO
to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising
on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Mr. TAl is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Anhui Conch Cement
Company Limited (Stock Code: 0914) which is listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 63, is an
Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
IP graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a degree
of Social Sciences in 1973. He subsequently pursued further
studies in Oxford University and Harvard Business School.
Mr. IP joined the Hong Kong Government in November
1973 as an Administrative Officer and had served various
government departments. Mr. IP was promoted to the
rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “Government of the HKSAR”) as a Principal Official from
July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions held by Mr. IP in the
past included Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for
Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for
Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the position of Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His
portfolio in respect of economic development covered air and
sea transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal
services, meteorological services, competition and consumer
protection. He was also responsible for labour policies
including matters relating to employment services, labour
relations and employees’ rights. In his capacity as Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour, Mr. IP was a member
of the Hong Kong Airport Authority Board, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Authority Board, the Hong Kong International
Theme Parks Company Board as well as the Chairman of the
Logistics Development Council, Port Development Board,
Maritime Industry Council and Aviation Development Advisory
Committee. Mr. IP retired from the Government of the HKSAR
in July 2007. Mr. IP received the Gold Bauhinia Star award
from the Government of the HKSAR in 2001, and is an
unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. IP is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1313), Synergis Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2340), Lai Sun Development Company Limited (Stock
Code: 0488), Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1888) which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 62, is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. MAK graduated from the
University of Toronto with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in
1976. He is a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. After working in Citibank for over 26 years,
Mr. MAK retired on 1 May 2012. He last served as the Head
of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong, being the
country business manager for corporate and investment
banking business. Mr. MAK had also held various other
senior positions in Citibank including Head of Global Banking
responsible for managing all the coverage bankers. Prior
to that, he also managed the bank’s Hong Kong corporate
finance business, regional asset management business and
was the Chief Financial Officer of North Asia. Before joining
Citibank in 1985, Mr. MAK was an audit group manager at
Coopers & Lybrand (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers).
He worked for Coopers & Lybrand for eight years, five of which
was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. MAK is an Independent Non-executive Director of I.T
Limited (Stock Code: 0999), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1125), Hong Kong Television Network Limited (Stock
Code: 1137) and Goldpac Group Limited (Stock Code: 3315)
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 66, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Ms. WONG joined the Company on 20 August
2013. Ms. WONG had been with PricewaterhouseCoopers
for over 36 years specializing in the Mainland China tax and
business advisory services. Since 1978, she was responsible
for the development of the firm’s business in Mainland China.
Ms. WONG joined Tricor Services Limited as a director
from 2004 to 2006 after her retirement as a partner from
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2004. Ms. WONG is the Chairman
of The Applied Research Council and a member of Advisory
Committee on Social Work Training and Manpower Planning.
She is also a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Ms. WONG is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock Code:
0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683) and Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636), which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and an independent director of China World Trade
Center Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 54, is the Business Director of the
Group. He initially joined the Group in 1998 and served various
departments for over 10 years until 2013. Mr. WONG rejoined
the Group in 2014. He has over 38 years of manufacturing
and purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. Mr.
WONG is responsible for the purchasing of diamonds, gems
and gold products of the Group and the operation of the
Company. He is the second term member of the Guangzhou
Nansha District Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the Diamond Grader of
National Gemstone Testing Center, the Certified Diamond
Grader of HRD Antwerp Institute of Gemmology, the Vice-
chairman of Hong Kong Guangzhou Nansha Association,
the sixth term executive director of Guangzhou Overseas
Friendship Association, a consultant of Guangzhou Panyu
Jewelry Manufacturers Association, the fourth term executive
director of Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Friendship Association
and the third term director of Guangzhou Panyu District
Overseas Exchange Association. Mr. WONG is the brother
of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief
Executive and Executive Director.

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 55, has been appointed as the
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group
since September 2012. Dr. CHAN graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Oklahoma City University
(the United States of America), with a doctorate degree and
a master’s degree in Business Administration. She is also
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Dr. CHAN had been the Director of Finance
and the Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors & Chief
Executive Officer of Bossini International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 0592) for approximately three and four years
respectively during the period from 2003 to 2010. Dr. CHAN
has substantial management experiences in auditing, financial
management, corporate finance and general management in
vast varieties of businesses including audit firm, travel, property
development, hotel investment and management, household
appliances trading and manufacturing, semiconductor
and retail industries for more than 29 years. Dr. CHAN is
responsible for the overall financial management, corporate
finance, investor relations and company secretarial matters of
the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 53, is the Deputy Financial
Controller of the Group. Ms. WONG joined the Group in 1997.
She is mainly responsible for accounting, finance and tax
planning matters of the Group. Ms. WONG often travels to
Mainland China in search of information on national tax policies
and privileges in order to develop relevant tax plans for the
Group. She has over 29 years of experience in financial and
accounting for commercial firms.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the AGM have service contracts with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 40 to the financial statements,
no other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party, and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, save as disclosed below, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which (a) were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(b) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange:

EENESCHGRRE

MR2015F3A31H R TXHEEEI AR
RIEEREEITHRAEBMERARR R SHAEMA
BB ZE(EERLESRBERL([EFHR R
HEEH ) EXVED) 2B’ H - HERYD RE
HH o HEA (o) RIEEF R ERGIF 3521
MTEARLRSNZIEMM BT ko) RIEE
BHARIHARAR(BRH)ES LT
MAI(T EmAR DM EE10FT S EM T A
ETRTEFRZOZESTAND(ZAESTA)
BAMGRNRNB MBI 2w AR

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of ZFAFKRG REMREKRGZTFE :
the Company:
Number of Ordinary Shares
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
EEnA EGNAA [ BEEEE EERRA HaRE tRFESHL
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 4,021,561 404,000 242,820,176 1,611,060 248,756,787 (L) 42.23%
HERELE note (a) note (o) note (d)
Bt (a) i 3 (b) i 5 (d)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 282,344 242,820,176 243,102,520 (L) 41.27%
HWEEE note (c)
BEE (o)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 370,000 1,511,050 1,881,050 (L) 0.32%
EEREE note (d)
B 2 (d)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung 10,000 10,000 (L) 0.002%
InEat
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 385,000 1,611,050 1,896,050 (L) 0.32%
BEWHLT note (d)
B 5 (d)
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping 237,865 237,865 (L) 0.04%
BEkZ+T
Mr. LI Hon Hung 782,437 782,437 (L) 0.13%

FEERE

(L Long position #f &
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EETHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of

the Company: (Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 404,000 shares of the
Company.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was a discretionary beneficiary of the WONG’s Family
Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which
controlled over one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.
Accordingly, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, together with others, collectively controlled
(directly or indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control)
Limited and was deemed to be interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk
Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, together with others, collectively
controlled (directly or indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of Dragon
King Investment Ltd.. Accordingly, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was deemed to
be interested in 8,634,504 shares held by Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the
Company.

Note (c)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively controlled (directly
or indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.
Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested in 234,185,672
shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively controlled
(directly or indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of Dragon King
Investment Ltd.. Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested
in 8,634,504 shares held by Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the Company.

Note (d)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, and Ms.
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy were discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust. The Trust
was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung
Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which in turn was the beneficial owner
of 1,611,050 shares of the Company.

EERNEScHGRRE ()

FLAFRMBRERKGZHE - ()

3 ()
EHEREFEEZRBERT Z 15 404,000 8 A2 AR

1/\ o
B 5% (o)

ﬁ1§ﬁﬁEEER%EMZEE(HZEEJ)Z%%”‘/\ ° #
ERAECHARERTARAAEHERTRAZER
HAA - EHNEGER)AERA ‘Jt;ﬁ, D2 — IR EE o
Hit > #2REREEEEREMATER(EELBE) 2
HIARUER)ARAABRB—FBEE  AWRAERAS
1BERR) BBR A B A 2 234,185,672 i 4 A A B 17
HRER -

AN BEEAEEREMA T ER(EERME) S
HEEREERATHRB= P2 —REE- Al 2
BREBHBEANEBREARQAFRA 28,634,504 R A
REIRDFPEE R -

()

FmEaEEREMATER (EEmED)EH N8
(FER)ARAFBHR—FIREE - At - HAWBEER
WEBRANREIER)ERARFE 2234,185,672R A A A
R s s -

ﬁt&l\vsﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁigﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\t LR (B s i) 12
FIEEREBRARBB = 2 —RERE - At - #Hm
2EERERNEEREGERA 7%7528,634,504ﬁx$
RARRD RIS R -

B 5 ()

HE®AL BERRETLEE %E%i&;ﬁﬁﬁﬁzzii%
m-EZﬁgx SN ZEAAETHERERTAERA

EMEBTRAZESEAA ﬁﬁ%i@aﬁﬂuz%mmmoso
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EEEWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS F ZE B% 3 7 B% {5 B 4B F#

B% {3z 18
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES p =
So far as is known to the directors and chief executive of the M 20159€3A31H - B T XIEBEE I - B
Company, as at 31 March 2015, save as disclosed below, ARAGEENSESTHRABME BAQFE
no person, other than a director or chief executive of the HFEHHZFIZITHAEN  HIEEMATRARAD
Company, had an interest or short position in the shares and a7 RHEBEIR DT - BERBEESFLEE
underlying shares of the Company which are required to be [EHIFEXVIELE 2 X E 30 EE XA R AR A
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 {5 7 25k X B -
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Number of Total
Name of Shareholder shares Capacity Interest % of Shares
BRME BB Riz&E 513 REWE GEHESHL
Mr. CHAN Wai 3,849,022 (L) Beneficial Owner 246,669,198 (L) 41.87%
REXE E=EAA
242,820,176 (L)  Controlled Corporation
(note (a)) SEHE
(Pt 5E (a)
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 2,678,090 (L) Beneficial Owner 245,498,266 (L) 41.67%
BERELE EmEEA
242,820,176 (L)  Controlled Corporation
(note (a)) XERE
(KI5E ()
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,370,229 (L) Beneficial Owner 251,777,029 (L) 42.74%
(Deceased on 14 July 2011) EnlEBA
=i 245,406,800 (L)  Controlled Corporation
(72011 F£7 B14BEHH) (notes (a), (b) REHERE
and ()
(FI5E(a)  (b)
% (c))
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,185,672 (L) Beneficial Owner 234,185,672 (L) 39.75%
AEEBR)ERA EnlBEA
Templeton Asset Management Ltd. 35,254,130 (L) Investment Manager 35,254,130 (L) 5.98%
REKIR
(L) Long position ¥ &
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. WONG Koon Cheung and the administrator of Mr. LEE Shu
Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over
one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited and were deemed to
be interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the
Company.

In addition, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. WONG Koon Cheung and the administrator of Mr.
LEE Shu Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly)
over one-third of the voting power of Dragon King Investment Ltd. and were
deemed to be interested in 8,634,504 shares held by Dragon King Investment
Ltd. in the Company.

Note (b)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share
capital of Wah Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624
shares of the Company.

Note (c)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share
capital of Wah Hang Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000 shares
of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2015 as disclosed in Note 40 to the
financial statements do not constitute connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or
its holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the percentages of sales for
the year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as
follows:

FERRREGRHE
= ()

M5t (a)

MELE BECELAERTHHBTAENEEEERA &
AHMATER(EESEEm)IEHINEER) AR
RS HRERE  BERAARAE(ER)BRARFA
#)234,185,672 R AN A RO P HEH R o

B B 49

o HERE BERELERTHHBEENEEEE
A BEREMATHER (EEgBED) EHEERES
RARBB=S22 —REE BHEEANETREAR
NAEIFE 8,634,504 R AR RIRMDFHEB R ©

B 5E ()

FRHMEANBEETBEARAESRLREBARAASR
WOBEITRARSE33%  MEFHBLREAR ARG
£630,624 xR AR A ff ©

B 5E (o)

FTRLEBRARAA R
WMOBETRANG1%  MEFTHRLERBRAFLFAE
1,956,000 & A X BB A7

B E X 5

BT 75 SRR M FE A0 AT R B A R BN B E 2015
FIAGIBLFEITUZHEAT LIRS
YTHWRETRAUETZHERS -

EFERMEMBUASEFIER
ZH @

AAT - KB RREIERA TR ERE
B BB MR AT STAE A L - A DR E R
#2017 L 3 A B .2 B oK
{8 35 70 JE 15 ) 35 o

EBER
REBFEN  AEEEBEF AL HER
ZEALMT

2015 2014
The largest customer SN 2.5% 1.8%
Five largest customers combined hEHRAEFP AT 4.2% 3.1%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had interest in the major
customers noted above.

BREE REZBMBEALIXBESZMAES
ARAE% A ERAZEMAR  HEEE
tREFERP 2 -
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EEEWE

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

EEMEDS
ER - AEBEBERBEMEBEEZES
FRUNNE

2015 2014
The largest supplier BEAEER 23.5% 27.6%
Five largest suppliers combined hAEAHEEER 61.7% 72.4%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had interest in the major
suppliers noted above.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of
the Group as at 31 March 2015 are set out in Notes 35 and 36
to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company for the AGM will
be closed from 17 August 2015 to 19 August 2015, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM
to be held on 19 August 2015, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 14 August 2015.

The register of members of the Company for the final dividend
will also be closed on 25 August 2015 and no transfer of
shares will be registered on that day. In order to qualify for the
final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 24 August
2015.

REE REZBMEALIXNBESEMARES
ARAE% A ERAZEMBR  HEHE
PR FERMEE 2

BITER BFIRHEMESR

R2015F3A3IBZAEEEFETER  FX
MEMEEFBERNR T B REM L5436 °

BxBEE
ADEZARMAL T EBELEE R
2R - EREEIH RS BN ER S -

OEmERPBRER
MEREFAREME  A2AKKR2015F8
A17HZ2015F8 198 (HEMKBIEHE
MEERERDBFELFE - BFEE
M EEBR20156F 8 A19H BITZ REAF
REg FEBRPXHEREERESREAR
20158 A14H T F AR 30D XEARRNR 2
BAEARNBPFPELEEEPRELFETLER
NAE MU ABBEFERRNBRISIHAE
MAPLI7TEI7T12-1716F ©

MAREEEMS - AR AR 201548 A
SHEERERNBEELFE - BFEE
REERERE  FIEBRBPXHEREBAR
ExEENR20156F8H24H T F4K300 %
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates is
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the directors had an interest in any
business constituting competing business to the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the public float of shares in the Company has
remained above the minimum percentage required by the
Stock Exchange throughout the year.

AUDITOR
The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2015 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

_
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK HOLDINGS
(INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Luk
Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to
152, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.32), and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

FEEBKEETTENERAT  BENRAFAEL —1#
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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B A2 BEN RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

= A 4= 24
£F = E\ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE2015F3A31ALFE

2015 2014
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 F#E&RT FET
Revenue N 6 15,922,708 19,214,930
Cost of sales SHEE AN 8 (12,091,170) (15,000,776)
Gross profit EH 3,831,538 4,214,154
Other income HA g A 7 174,386 107,510
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEER (1,937,059) (1,923,385)
Administrative expenses THER (147,247) (150,841)
Other gains, net Habless - EEE 9 54,593 61,317
Operating profit el 8 1,976,211 2,308,755
Finance income RS 48,874 15,167
Finance costs V% EA (20,474) (2,844)
Finance income, net U A FEE 10 28,400 12,323
Share of results of associates JE(LEEE RN R EE 21 (21,793) (259)
Profit before income tax B B 45 %0 A& A 1,982,818 2,320,819
Income tax expenses FriS®i 5 2 11 (362,190) (453,545)
Profit for the year F W 1,620,628 1,867,274
Profit attributable to: FEAE @A
Equity holders of the Company RAGIERER A 1,614,805 1,864,928
Non-controlling interests AR 5,823 2,346
1,620,628 1,867,274
Earnings per share for profit FRARRRAERTEA
attributable to equity holders FE(R R A 2 TR A H
of the Company during the year 13
Basic HAK HK$2.74 5t HK$3.1757T
Diluted e HK$2.74 85t HK$3.17 87T

The notes on pages 69 to 152 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Details of dividends to equity holders of the Company are set

out in Note 14.

FOIE12AMMERIUEHFAMBEIHRERN—
B e

AR EERFTFE ABIRIE FBEHNME14
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

,\\/T\ = i\ﬁq&)\#ﬁ&%

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE2015F3A31ALFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

Profit for the year F N F 1,620,628 1,867,274
Other comprehensive income/(loss): EfZ2mEW A~ (EE)
Items that will not be reclassified HAET @B 7 EEBmAHE

to profit or loss
Remeasurements of employee EBERFMEENENTE

benefit obligations 3,261 6,711
Items that may be reclassified to EEnpe & EX 7 Z Ran 9 H H

profit or loss
Currency translation differences: PE N 258

— Group —5E (16,685) (6,947)

— Associates /NG (1,312) 2)
Revaluation of available-for-sale RPN ESHEENEESE

financial assets (4,680) 5,400
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEUA(EE) » KT IE

for the year, net of tax (19,416) 5,162
Total comprehensive income FREEAKA

for the year 1,601,212 1,872,436
Attributable to: TEIA LR

— Equity holders of the Company —RARERFEA 1,595,454 1,869,931

— Non-controlling interests — IR ER 5,758 2,505
Total comprehensive income FREEAKA

for the year 1,601,212 1,872,436
The notes on pages 69 to 152 are an integral part of these 692 152B MW ANEGEAMBHRFTN—

consolidated financial statements.

BB o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SCaEERE

As at 31 March 2015
7201593 H31H

As at 31 March

®3A31H
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P &E FHET FHIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 17 618,012 566,321
Land use rights T R 18 224,883 182,576
Investment properties B 19 45,792 45,926
Interests in associates REEENT 2R 21 245,934 7,046
Loan to an associate ERTFT—REE QT 22 83,160 -
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTA 23 66,735 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AfHESREE 24 8,820 13,500
Trading licence 5 R 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits and prepayments fﬂ%?ﬁﬁ&?ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ 25 128,517 189,933
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTREE 33 28,025 34,211
1,450,958 1,040,593
Current assets mEEE
Inventories s 26 7,394,696 6,225,280
Trade receivables E 5 EWARTE 28 200,759 225,938
Deposits, prepayments and e ENREREA
other receivables JE W AR TE 25 257,701 274,880
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTA 23 5,234 14,528
Amount due from an associate U —REE& N R BRIA 21 30,076 -
Loan to an associate ERTFT—REE QT 22 20,000 -
Income tax recoverable BEE e 61,686 -
Cash and bank balances B KIRTTAE 29 2,090,127 1,804,937
10,060,279 8,545,563
Total assets BEE 11,511,237 9,586,156
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves RAREm TR ARG
attributable to the equity BERR
holders of the Company
Share capital A& A 31(a) 58,910 58,910
Share premium &t 5 (8 31(b) 2,522,983 2,522,983
Reserves 1 32(a) 5,630,461 4,683,025
Proposed dividends RS 14 324,009 375,851
8,536,363 7,640,769
Non-controlling interests e S 64,144 58,386
Total equity EmiaTa 8,600,507 7,699,155

The notes on pages 69 to 152 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FO9E 152 MM TR FHRAM B MR —
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SCaEERE

As at 31 March 2015
7201593 H31H

As at 31 March

®3A31H
2015 2014
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
P 5T FHET FHET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBDEFE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMEHARE 33 85,421 54,793
Employee benefit obligations EERANEE 34 34,008 34,517
119,429 89,310
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables, other payables B S ERMIRIE - HAvpER
and accruals BRIB K JERT VA 30 902,126 979,123
Amount due to an associate B —REtE AR IRIA 21 1,674 1,771
Bank borrowings |ITER 35 1,470,633 568,000
Gold loans EeEE 36 242,802 -
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTIS R &1 174,066 248,797
2,791,301 1,797,691
Total liabilities BLEE 2,910,730 1,887,001
Total equity and liabilities =Kk EEBRE 11,511,237 9,586,156
Net current assets REEEFE 7,268,978 6,747,872
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRESEE 8,719,936 7,788,465
Director Director
s EE

FOEOE 152 BRI FHRAM B MR —

B9 -

The notes on pages 69 to 152 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

BEBRER

As at 31 March 2015
20159 3HA31H

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P 5T F#ERT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries SN NG - E 20 3,338,225 3,338,225
Current assets mMBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEN KT A RIBRIE 27 1,359,225 731,982
Cash and bank balances B KIRTTA 29 2,882 94,038
1,362,107 826,020
Total assets BEE 4,700,332 4,164,245
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves B R
Share capital fr A 31(a) 58,910 58,910
Share premium 1D = (E 31(b) 2,522,983 2,522,983
Reserves i 32(b) 775,738 726,427
Proposed dividends HRR S 14 324,009 375,851
3,681,640 3,684,171
LIABILITIES =1
Current liabilities mBAE
Accruals FERTEIA 30 1,162 2,074
Amount due to a subsidiary FES B R RFIA 27 159,400 -
Bank borrowings IRITER 35 650,000 478,000
Gold loans =eEE 36 208,130 -
1,018,692 480,074
Total equity and liabilities EakBEBRE 4,700,332 4,164,245
Net current assets REBEEFE 343,415 345,946
Total assets less current liabilities REERLEAE 3,681,640 3,684,171
Director Director
EF EZ
The notes on pages 69 to 152 are an integral part of these 69E 152 B MM st Bt TR G M WMER —
consolidated financial statements. B3 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
OB R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE2015F3A31ALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARFERRAAER

Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium  Reserves Subtotal interests equity
BE RDEE f#E PN ERRER BRSH

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TATL TAL  TAR TAT TAT TR

(Note 32(a))
(M3 32())

For the year ended HE2014F3A ALEE

31 March 2014
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4 A1 H 58,910 2,522,983 3,842,855 6,424,748 52,845 6,477,593
Comprehensive income  2EHRA
Profit for the year ERaE A - - 1,864,928 1,864,928 2,346 1,867,274
Other comprehensive Et2EKA/(HR)

income/(loss)
Remeasurements of ESRFEANENHE

employee benefit

obligations - - 6,711 6,711 - 6,711
Currency translation ERER

differences - - (7108 (7,108) 159 (6,949)
Revaluation of avallable- ~ AIEHESBEER

for-sale financial assets BEZ - - 5,400 5,400 - 5,400
Total other comprehensive Eftt 2E&@IKA

income - - 5,003 5,003 159 5,162
Total comprehensive Et2magA8s

income - - 1,869,931 1,869,931 2,505 1,872,436
Transactions with owners BHBEAZZH
Establishment of a KU EZENBAR

non-wholly owned

subsidiary - - - - 3,036 3,036
Dividends paid BfRE - - (653910)  (653910) _ (653,910)
At 31 March 2014 R2014%F3A31H 58,910 2,522,983 5,058,876 7,640,769 58,386 7,699,155
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE= N 72 g2y
vT\ 1: /\,.\E.,.\@J%
N

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE2015F3A31ALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FORERFHARE
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital  premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity
Bx  BRHEE 541 ] Mt ERRER 2 HR8E
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET THET THET
(Note 32(a))
(P 32(a))
For the year ended HE2015F3A31 ALEE
31 March 2015
At 1 April 2014 R2014E4 A1H 58,910 2,522,983 5,058,876 7,640,769 58,386 7,699,155
Comprehensive income  2EHRA
Profit for the year FREF - - 1,614,805 1,614,805 5,823 1,620,628
Other comprehensive Et2EKA/(HR)
income/(loss)
Remeasurements of EERMEANENE
employee benefit
obligations - - 3,261 3,261 - 3,261
Currency translation ERES
differences - - (17,932) (17,932) (65) (17,997)
Revaluation of avallable- ~ AIEHESBEER
for-sale financial assets EEE - - (4,680) (4,680) - (4,680)
Total other comprehensive £t 2 H# 5§
loss - - (19,351) (19,351) (65) (19,416)
Total comprehensive 2EEBA
income - - 1,595,454 1,595,454 5758 1,601,212
Transactions with owners BHBEAZZH
Dividends paid BRKRE - - (699,860) (699,860) - (699,860)
At 31 March 2015 201593 431 H 58,910 2,522,983 5,954,470 8,536,363 64,144 8,600,507

The notes on pages 69 to 152 are an integral part of these F69E 152 B M T At L4554 MK RER —

consolidated financial statements.

B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=AN ANy =~ —1 %%
%/T\ SR h=
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HZE2015F3A31ALFE

2015 2014
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B &E TFET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities & FE) 2B R=E
Net cash generated from EBEEL RS T
operations 37 885,958 1,198,438
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENBEEFEH (276,906) (107,321)
Overseas income taxes paid BEREINTISER (184,887) (129,442)
Net cash generated from operating & & EEEL 2 IR & F50
activities 424,165 961,675
Cash flows from investing activites H&EEFBZRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEVE  BELRE
equipment (180,986) (183,323)
Purchases of land use right BE T FE A - (650)
Prepayment for purchase of BEET  LHFRAR
building, land use right HiE 2 BRI
and equipment - (73,939)
Subscription of convertible bond REA MR ES (57,080) -
Purchases of available-for-sale EEAHIESRMEE
financial assets - (8,100)
Increase in short-term bank FHRBR @ ANEE
deposits, with maturities SRITFFIE M
over 3 months (556,586) (158,462)
Loans granted to an associate m—XEE R A ERE R (120,000) -
Interest received EAelss 25,496 15,167
Establishment of a non-wholly Y —RIFEZEMBAT
owned subsidiary - 3,036
Acquisition of an associate U iE — R = A7) (244,810) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BER&HE
property, plant and equipment FriS 5878 993 746
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFTA 2R & F58 (1,132,973) (405,525)
Cash flows from financing activites F&EEEHZIRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE TS RIR 2,323,437 1,235,000
Proceeds from gold loans =S BEMBRIA 869,030 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIRITENK (1,418,800) (667,000)
Repayment of gold loans BEESEE (602,672) -
Interest on bank borrowings RITERRES
and gold loans BEFE (20,474) (2,844)
Dividends paid BEARRE (699,860) (653,910)
Net cash generated from/(used in) ~ BYEEBNFTE,(FrF)
financing activities IR e FRR 450,661 (88,754)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RekBEeEEY 2
and cash equivalents CRu),/HE 58 (258,147) 467,396
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April M4 A1 BZHRERIREESEYD 1,646,475 1,186,808
Exchange differences VE W ZERE (13,249) (7,729)
Cash and cash equivalents M3A3TBEZHERIRE
at 31 March ZEY 29 1,375,079 1,646,475

Fe9E 152 MM AL EREMIEHREN—

o e

The notes on pages 69 to 152 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

68 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7555 (B ) R L H



GENERAL INFORMATION

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 3
September 1996 as a company with limited liability
under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the sourcing,
designing, wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing
of a variety of gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set
jewellery products.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated,
and have been approved for issue by the board of
directors on 25 June 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that certain
financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at fair
value, as explained in Note 3.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this
financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with  HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

2

70

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(@)

New amendments to existing standards that are
effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2014 and are relevant to the
Group’s operations:

HKAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities’. This amendment is to the

application guidance in HKAS 32 and clarifies
some of the requirements for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities on the statement of
financial position.

HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of assets —
Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets’. This amendment addresses the disclosure
of information about the recoverable amount of
impaired assets.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)
(Amendments), ‘Investment entities’. This
amendment applies to a particular class of
business that qualify as investment entities. The
term ‘investment entity’ refers to an entity whose
business purpose is to invest funds solely for
returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both. An investment entity must also
evaluate the performance of its investments on a
fair value basis. Such entities could include private
equity organisations, venture capital organisations,
pension funds, sovereign wealth funds and other
investment funds.

The adoption of these amendments had no impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

2 WEEE(R)

(@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
NN

VSRR BT o

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Certain new standards and amendments to

existing standards relevant to the Group have

been published that are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April

2015 or later periods, which the Group has not

early adopted, are as follows:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of financial
statement - Disclosure
initiative 2

HKAS 16 (Amendment) and  Clarification of acceptable
HKAS 38 (Amendment) methods of depreciation
and amortisation 2

Separate financial statements
- Equity method in separate
financial statements 2

Financial instruments *

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets

(Amendments) between an investor and
its associate or joint venture ?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts

with customer 2
Annual improvements 2012 Annual improvements
2010-2012 reporting cycle
Annual improvements 2013 Annual improvements
2011-2013 reporting cycle
Annual improvements 2014 Annual improvements
2012-2014 reporting cycle 2

“) Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 July

2014

@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2016

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment on the impact of these new standards
and amendments to existing standards and is
not yet in a position to state whether they would
have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of the operations and financial position taken as a
whole. The Group intends to adopt the above new
standards and amendments to existing standards
when they become effective.

(b)

2 WEREER)
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B EREERER 2 EERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 BREE(#E)

2

72

(¢)  New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) (c)

In addition, the revised listing rules on disclosure
of financial information with reference to the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation as from the Company’s
first financial year ending on or after 31 March
2016. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the changes.
So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely
to be significant and only the presentation and
the disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements will be affected.

#EB(RRGRPID(E622F)

BN - 2B BCARNER)) (5
B22E ) BRI E BV B E R
To(EMRAIEARRAR2016
FIANH B TLE 2 B ET
FEBEN - REBIEFTHZED
ZEHTE AEBEBER &R A
TRAGEHBREATFE  WAR

HRENBBRERZEMZIREES

=, I | 22 488
ZR|FE o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3 FEEHBEFEHE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the RAENESGEVERREAERCEIE
preparation of these consolidated financial statements @REHENTIX - B EEHBEEN
are set out below. These policies have been consistently HEBRENFIBEERFEERER -

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

3.1 Consolidation 3.1
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances,
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
loss are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with group’s accounting
policies.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (EIEE) BR 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN R RS ek

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

3 XE®

RPECRIE ()

3.1 KA (#])

(b)

(c)

EEEFESBNHRELR
EHiEELEH

B RETM T EE
BAEZREZRH AR
ERRR S A RESIER
BEAZ B DEER NET
ZRG e IXMNEMKREZ
AR EERATREK B QR
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RERETHEMEE A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

74

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes any
goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of results of an associate’ in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Associate (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Amounts reported by associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in an
associate is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who are responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
collectively as the executive director and senior
management who make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS$,
which is the Company’s functional and
Group’s presentation currency.

3 FESHBRBEHE)
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3.3

3.4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

76

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised within ‘other gains, net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and bank
balances are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance income
et’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement
within ‘other gains, net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or
loss.

3.5 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3 FEEHBKEEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment 3.5 ¥k  BERRMW (&)

(Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Construction in progress, mainly representing
buildings on which construction work has not
been completed, is stated at cost, which includes
development and construction expenditure,
interest and other direct costs incurred during the
construction period, less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until the
construction and installation is completed.
On completion, the construction in progress
is transferred to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land interests classified as finance
lease and other property, plant and equipment
commence amortisation/depreciation from the
time when the assets becomes available for their
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on
other assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land interests Remaining lease term
classified as finance leases  of 35-42 years
Buildings 2% or over the unexpired

lease period of
leasehold land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the
unexpired lease period,
whichever is
shorter

Furniture and fixtures and 20%

computer equipment
Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

3.6

3.7

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 3.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing net proceeds with carrying amount
of the relevant assets and are included in the
consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, (if any). Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the
land on which various plants and buildings are
generally situated for a period from 19 to 54 years.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and is not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over their estimated useful lives of 30
to 59 years. Where the carrying amount of an
investment property is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

80

3.7

3.8

3.9

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (EIEE) BR 25

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that
future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repair
and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment. At the date of reclassification, its cost
and accumulated depreciation are transferred to
property, plant and equipment and become its
cost and accumulated depreciation for accounting
purposes. If an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property because its
use has changed, it is reclassified as investment
property. At the date of reclassification, its cost
and accumulated depreciation are transferred
to investment property and become its cost
and accumulated depreciation for accounting
purposes.

Trading licence

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents
a membership in Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Inventories
Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour and other
direct costs. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

3.11 Financial assets
3.11.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss and loans, receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of the Group’s financial assets at initial
recognition.

(@

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held
for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are categorised
as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current
assets if expected to be recovered
within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

82

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
3.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for
those with maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group and the
Company’s loans and receivables
comprise ‘loan to an associate’, ‘trade
and other receivables’, ‘amount due
from an associate’, ‘cash and bank
balances’ and ‘amounts due from
subsidiaries’ in the balance sheet.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories.
They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures
or management intends to dispose of
it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

3.11.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date-the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
3.11.2 Recognition and measurement

(Continued)
Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains, net’ in
the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement as
‘other gains, net’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the income statement as
part of other income. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

3.12 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.13 Impairment of financial assets

84

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract.

As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.13 Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

86

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Derivative financial instruments which do

not qualify for hedge accounting
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gains
or losses depends on whether the derivative is
designated and qualified as a hedging instrument,
and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
Since the derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in fair value of any derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement.

3.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

3.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Mandatorily redeemable preference shares are
classified as liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Trade and other payables are obligations to pay
for goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

3.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are carried initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.18 Trade and other payables
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

88

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as
‘finance cost’ in consolidated income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.

3.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.21 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of
the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.21 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

920

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised
on deductible temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

3.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus
plans are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held in a separately
administered fund. The MPF Scheme
is generally funded by payments from
employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred and
are reduced by the employer’s voluntary
contribution forfeited from the MPF Scheme
by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group contributes to
state-sponsored retirement schemes for its
relevant employees in Mainland China. The
state-sponsored retirement schemes are
responsible for the entire post-retirement
benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed
as incurred and are fully and immediately
vested in the employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3 FEEHBKEEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.22 Employee benefits (Continued) 3.22ERTEFI (48)

(d) Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of
lump sum long service amounts payable
on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method by a
qualified actuary, discounted to its present
value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on Exchange
Fund Notes that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligations. All actuarial gains and losses
of defined benefit plans are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Past
service costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested.
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3.23 Revenue and income recognition .23k R A T2

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, sales returns and discounts, after
eliminated sales within the Group.

(@) Sales of goods — wholesale

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the
wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance
of the products. Delivery does not occur
until the products have been delivered to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the
wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has
accepted the products in accordance with
sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.23 Revenue and income recognition

(Continued)

(0)

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Retail
sales are usually in cash or by credit card.
It is the Group’s policy to sell its jewellery
products to the end customers with a right of
return within one year at a certain discount
on the original selling price. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide
for such returns at the time of sale.

Royalty and service income in respect of the
use of the Group’s trademarks and related
services are recognised on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

Consultancy fee income in respect of
technical support and consultancy services
are recognised in the period the services are
provided.

Value-added tax refunds are recognised
at their fair values in the consolidated
income statement when there is reasonable
assurance that the refund will be received
and all the relevant conditions will be
complied with.

Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease period.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.24 Operating leases (as a leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. When a
component of the lease payment which is not fixed
but is based on future amount of a factor, other
than with the passage of time, such as percentage
of sales or concessionaire fees, the amount is
recognised as expenses as it arises.

3.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks, including foreign exchange risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks, credit
risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to manage
certain risk exposures. The use of financial
derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Board of Directors of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R MR

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

U]

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
with most of the transactions settled in HK$.
The Group also has retail and wholesale
operations in Mainland China, Macau,
Canada, the United States and Singapore.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s
net foreign exchange exposures. The Group
has not entered into any forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge its foreign
exchange exposure as the directors are of
the view that the potential foreign exchange
exposures are not significant.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations
primarily do not expose the Group to material
foreign exchange risk. The Group’s assets
and liabilities are primarily denominated in
the respective group companies’ functional
currency.

At 31 March 2015, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HKS$, with
all other variables held constant, profit
before tax would have been approximately
HK$84,112,000 (2014: HK$69,884,000)
higher/lower respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

4

96

(ii)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the convertible bonds
subscribed and loans to an associate which
were issued at fixed rates and interest free
respectively, and expose the Company to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings
at variable rate expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The Group does not enter into
derivatives to address these risks.

At 31 March 2015, if interest rates on
borrowings had increased/decreased by
25 basis points with all other variables
held constant, the impact on post-tax
profit for the year would not be significant.
Management considers the cash flow
interest-rate risk related to borrowings to be
insignificant also.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. The carrying amounts of loan to
an associate, amount due from an associate,
trade and other receivables, deposits and
cash and bank balances included in the
consolidated balance sheet represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.
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The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products on credit terms are
made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
The Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible
within 30 days from the invoice date while
credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 90 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults
in the past. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables, if any,
has been made. The Group does not have
a significant concentration of credit risk. No
single customer accounted for more than 1%
of the Group’s total trade receivables during
the year.

The deposits, other receivables, amount due
from an associate and loan to an associate
are from counterparties with good credit
history. There is no history of defaults from
these counterparties.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, substantially
all the bank balances as detailed in Note 29
are held in major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the
amount of credit exposure to any financial
institution and management does not expect
any losses arising from non-performance by
these counterparties.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R AR MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

4

98

(iv)

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on
related debts and payment for purchases
and operating expenses. The Group finances
its working capital requirements through a
combination of internal resources and bank
borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and
bank balances and has available funding
through adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet its working capital
requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s
and the Company’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows based on the
earliest date on which the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.

4 MERRER (&)

(a) MBRIEER (&)
(iv) W& R <8R
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MR TEERRE RIRITER
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Liquidity risk (Continued)
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash

4 MEBRREERE)

(a) MBEEBRER ()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) mENVE R B (])
BB A DT — RREHE 27

outflows HE
More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Within but less but less undiscounted
1year than2years than5years cash outflows
Ba—% BARE  FMRRS
—-FR  @IRWE  BIREFE  RHESH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TiER TR TER TR
Group *50
As at 31 March 2015 R2015%3A31A
Trade payables and other EIENEERLD
payables JEFERIE 823,311 - - 823,311
Amount due to an associate E—FEEARRE 1,674 - - 1,674
Bank borrowings RAER 1,472,618 - - 1,472,618
Gold loans HEEE 243,334 - - 243,334
2,540,937 - - 2,540,937
As at 31 March 2014 R2014%3A31H
Trade payables and other BHRARERAMY
payables JEfERE 949,603 - - 949,603
Amount due to an associate ER-FEEARRE 1,771 - - 1,771
Bank borrowings RITER 568,846 - - 568,346
1,520,220 - - 1,620,220
Company F0F
As at 31 March 2015 #2015%3A 310
Accruals fEstE 1,162 - - 1,162
Amount due to a subsidiary ERHBARZE 159,400 - - 159,400
Bank borrowings RITER 650,798 - - 650,798
Gold loans BSEE 208,627 - - 208,627
1,019,987 - - 1,019,987
As at 31 March 2014 #2014%£3A 310
Accruals L HE Y 2,074 - - 2,074
Bank borrowings RITER 483,322 - - 483,322
485,396 - - 485,396
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

4

100

(v)

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sale of gold
ornaments. The gold markets are influenced
by global as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. A significant decline in
the prices of gold could adversely affect the
Group’s financial performance. The Group
manages commodity price risks mainly by
hedging gold price fluctuations through
certain derivative financial instrument-
trading of gold contracts and gold loans
contracts. Should the gold price go up, the
Group would charge a loss representing
the increase in gold price compared to the
contract price, and largely net against the
increase in turnover of gold products as a
result of gold price increase.

The gold contracts which settled on
daily basis and the difference between
the contract price and market price is
immediately recognised in the consolidated
income statement. As at 31 March 2015, the
notional value of the outstanding contracts
amounted to HK$159,432,000 (2014:
HK$382,957,000).

The gold loans (Note 36) are settled at
maturity which usually in 2 to 3 months from
date of inception and fair value change is
immediately recognised in the consolidated
income statement. As at 31 March 2015,
the notional value of outstanding gold loan
contracts amounted to HK$242,802,000
(2014: Nil).

At 31 March 2015, if the market price of
gold had increased or decreased by 5%,
profit before tax for the year ended 31 March
2015, due to changes in fair values of gold
contracts, would have been approximately
HK$7,972,000 (2014: HK$19,148,000) lower
or higher respectively. At 31 March 2015,
if the market price of gold had increased or
decreased by 5%, profit before tax for the
year ended 31 March 2015, due to change
in values of gold loans, would have been
approximately HK$12,140,000 (2014: Nil),
lower or higher respectively.

4 MERRER (&)
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(Continued)
(b) Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets, including cash and bank balances, trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits, amount
due from an associate and loan to an associate
and the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade
and other payables, amount due to an associate
and bank borrowings approximate their fair values
due to their maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as gold loans) are based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair values of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes are estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R MR

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4 BMERSEE ()
(Continued)
(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) D2ARBEME ()
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREVAEB N 2015FE3 A 31
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value RiEARBENENEREELS
at 31 March 2015. & o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—# ot EE ot

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T#T TET TT

As at 31 March 2015 R20154F3F31H
Assets BE
- Derivative financial instruments —TEERIA
- CGS Share Option —HERERE - - 5,234 5,234
- Convertible bond —aRES - 66,735 - 66,735
- Available-for-sale financial assets — A/t HESREE 8,820 - = 8,820
Total assets BEE 8,820 66,735 5,234 80,789
Liabilities BE
- Gold loans -EEEE 242,802 - - 242,802
Total liabilities BER 242,802 - - 242,802
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 FR - F—HF F_HHEF=H 2
during the year. I A AT (] BE R o
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREVAEEN2014F 3 H 31
assets that are measured at fair value at 31 March ARARBEAENESREE -
2014.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
g8 E-® E=R - Hy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET THET TET THT
As at 31 March 2014 W2014F3A31H
Assets BE
- Derivative financial instruments —TEERIA
- Gold future contracts -E22HEEY 14,528 - - 14,528
- Available-for-sale financial assets  — AJft HEL B E 13,500 - - 13,500
Total assets BEE 28,028 - - 28,028
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 HA2014¢3 AB1HILFEER &
during the year ended 31 March 2014. — R BREE=-F o MEWEL

ﬁ?ﬁ’%ﬁé‘
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, issue of new
shares or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio and the compliance of covenants of
its bank borrowings. The gearing ratio is calculated
as net (cash)/debt divided by total capital. Net
(cash)/debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including bank borrowings and gold loans) less
cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated
as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet, plus net (cash)/debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital
structure as at 31 March 2015:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(c) Capital risk management

4 MEBRREERE)
(c) REAREE

AEBFEREANBRRREAE
Bl EEENRE S - Wi RARREE
el - HEMF S HEREE R
A S AR BT IR AR B AN R 8 DARLE

AEBEREARE  TRARBEE
RENEHEHIE - BRI
EEARE AKERREXNT
BRMBRE - BITH RS
RITER

REBTABBEEL R REBTH
RIOTEFRAEREER - AEE
ELLXRRANF(Re) EEGREE
FEtE - F(Re) MEEEAER
RE(BRERTERRESER)R
ReRRTHESKAESH - #EK
TybA T#Ez ] (iR REERBRAM
R)IE(RE) MEEFERSH -

REBER2015F3A31HZER
BEESWIT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000

THT FHET

Bank borrowings |ITERK 1,470,633 568,000
Gold loans =eEE 242,802 -

Less: Cash and bank balances 7 : IR & RER1TA R

(2,090,127)  (1,804,937)

Net cash FIRE (376,692)  (1,236,937)
Total equity M AR RE 8,600,507 7,699,155
Total capital BEKR 8,223,815 6,462,218
Gearing ratio BBEAELE N/A N/A

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development
of its business in the long term.

AEBEHRESERRENEARE
W UREZEMEHRERERE
HASOHS -
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104

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
financial statements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are set out
below.

(a) Useful lives, residual values and
depreciation/amortisation charges of
property, plant and equipment, land use
rights and investment properties
The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation/amortisation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, land use rights
and investment properties with reference to the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of these
assets. Management will revise the depreciation
and amortisation charges where useful lives are
different to previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives and actual residual values may differ
from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore depreciation/
amortisation expense in future periods.

(b) Inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products
of similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associates and non-
financial assets

Investments in subsidiaries, investments in
associates and non-financial assets including
property, plant and equipment and land use rights,
are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or fair value less
costs to sell. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
() whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of
asset can be supported by its recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s reported
financial condition and results of operations.
If there is a significant adverse change in the
projected performance and resulting future cash
flow projections, it may be necessary to take an
impairment charge to the consolidated income
statement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(d) Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and other jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes in each of these jurisdictions.
There are transactions and calculations during the
ordinary course of business for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such as
differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Deferred income tax
liabilities relating to undistributed profit of those
subsidiaries in Mainland China are recognised
based on the undistributed profit of those
subsidiaries in Mainland China generated since 1
January 2008 which is expected to be distributed
in the foreseeable future. When the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and liabilities and taxation
charges in the period in which such estimate is
changed.

(d)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (EIEE) BR 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Provision for long service payment

The Group’s provision for long service payment
is determined with reference to statutory
requirements, the employees’ remuneration, their
year of services and age profile, and demographic
assumptions including: pre-retirement termination,
involuntary termination, early retirement, normal
retirement, death and disability. The basis of
estimation is reviewed on an on-going basis and
revised where appropriate. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
provision for long service payments and as a result
affect the results and financial position of the
Group.

Estimated fair value of convertible bond
The fair values of convertible bond that are not
traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. The directors have used a
Trinomial Option Pricing Model to determine the
fair values of the convertible bond. Significant
judgement on parameters, such as dividend vyield,
effective interest rate, volatility and risk-free rate,
is required to be made by the directors in applying
the Trinomial Option Pricing Model (Note 23). The
fair value of convertible bond subscribed for the
year ended 31 March 2015 determined using the
Trinomial Option Pricing Model was approximately
HK$66,735,000.

Purchase price allocation

Purchase prices related to acquisition of an
associate are allocated to the underlying assets
and liabilities of the investee based on their
estimated fair value at the time of acquisition. The
determination of fair value requires directors to
make assumptions, estimates and judgements
regarding future events. The allocation process
is inherently subjective and impacts the amounts
assigned to individually identifiable assets and
liabilities.
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B BHRRNE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”) have
been identified as the executive directors and senior
management collectively. The CODM review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The operating segments are
reported in accordance with the internal reporting
reviewed by the CODM.

CODM consider the business by nature of business
activities and assesses the performance of the following
operating segments:

i Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
ii. Retailing — Mainland China

iii.  Wholesaling — Hong Kong

iv.  Wholesaling — Mainland China

V. Licensing

CODM assess the performance of the operating
segments based on segment results. Finance income
and costs, corporate income and expenses are not
included in the results for each operating segment that
is reviewed by the CODM. Other information provided to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that
in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in
associates, certain land and buildings, investment
properties, deferred income tax assets and corporate
assets, all of which are managed on a central basis.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated income statement and balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

Annual Report 2015 4§

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 9BTFIH(E\E)
Year ended 31 March 2015
BE015538 1 ALER
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter-  Reportable
Macauand  Mainland Wholesaling-  Mainland segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China  Licensing elimination Total
TE-EE. 2E- #a- #a- AR DEL:
AMRES  hEMY FEt dERE  SHER BE  oBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T FET TET T T
Revenue KA
Sales to external customers HHEPHE 11,329,725 1,221,848 97,258 2,203,661 - - 14,852,492
Sales of scrap gold and BEESRIMSEH
platinum and gold bulion RS - - 492,463 - - - 492,463
11,329,725 1,221,848 589,721 2,203,661 - - 15,344,955
Inter-segment sales PHRHE 93,090 5631 3,437,045 155,677 - (3,692,343) -
Sales of merchandises HEBR 11,422,815 1,227,479 4,027,666 2,359,338 - (3,692,343) 15,344,955
Royalty and service income RERREERA - - - - 545,660 - 545,660
Consultancy fee income BREWA - - - - 32,093 - 32,003
Tota &t 1,422815 1,227,479 4,027,666  22359,338 577,753  (3,692,343) 15,922,708
Results of reportable TERFPER
segments 1,175,023 72,936 147,348 237,082 361,439 - 1,993,828
Areconcliation of results of EEEGEES L
reportable segments to profi EmgiE&nT
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable TERFPER
segments 1,993,828
Unallocated income RATMA 60,030
Unallocated expenses AARER (77,647)
Operating profit EERT 1,976,211
Finance income B 48,874
Finance costs BHER (20,474)
Share of resuls ElLHE
of associates A (21,793)
Profit before income tax RESHAATN 1,982,818
Income tax expenses FEHEY (362,190)
Profit for the year Ehidl 1,620,628
Non-controlling interests FrkEs (5,828)
Profit attributable to equity ~ ALFERKEA
holders of the Company gyl

1,614,805
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 WBEH(E\)

Year ended 31 March 2015
BE05%3A %1 ALER
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macauand  Mainland Wholesaling-  Mainland Inter-segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China  Licensing ~elimination Total  Unallocated Total
gE-ER 98- - - A D
AMRES  hEAN X mEME  RMRR He  ohEM AR it
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS000
TET TEn TEn TEn TET TEn TEn TET TEn
Depreciaion of property, 1% BE RN E
plant and equipment (65,631)  (17,748) (164 (20448  (10,009) - (17000 (25,066)  (146,766)
Amortisaton of and HhRRERS
Use rights - - - (460) (8,865) - (9,325) (336) (9,661)
Depreciation of investment ~~ RENENE
propertes - - - - - - - (1,303) (1,303)
Addtons of non-curent~ SEFEEERE
assets 66,471 16,027 9,852 2,189 6,017 - 12345 302,340 425,79
As at 31 March 2015
Ro15%3A%1 R
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macauand ~ Mainland Wholesaling-  Mainland Inter-segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China  Licensing ~ elimination Total  Unallocated Total
ge-E% o8- - - A D
AMREY  hEAR & dERE  RERR He  obEd 598 it
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Té7 TEn Tén TéR TéT Tén TéR TéR TéR
Segment assets AOEE 6,365,080 1471458 1185377 1694687 419277  (1,505,376) 9,541,312 9,541,312
Inerests I associates RBERA RS U594 24599
Land and buldings HREF 04 210944
Investment propertes RENE 45,192 45,792
Deferred income taxassets ~ EXEFTEREE 28,025 28,025
Income tax recoverable THEEER 1,686 61,686
Oterwnalocaled assets ~ ERAALEE 13750 131754
Total assets #at 11,511,287
Segment ligbilties PRIl (215,260) (11,859  (1612381) (281,314  (200,101) 1595376  (815,539) (815,539)
Deferted income tax abilties B A5 &R (85421)  (85,421)
Curentincome tax iabilties ~ H1EHERERE (174,066 (174,066)
Bank borrowings #ER (1,470,633 (1,470,639)
Gold loans EoRE (242,802 (242,800)
Other unallocated lebites ~ EMAARERE (122269)  (122.269)
Total liablities #ak
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SHMIHE B\

Year ended 31 March 2014

HENUFIASNALER
Retalling -
HongKong,  Retaling - Wholesaling - Inter- Reportable
Macau and Mainland  Wholesaling - Mainland segment  segments
overseas China Hong Kong China  Licensing  elimination Total
2E-F- 2E- - HE- pril BE=

RFRES AR R TEME RERR g8
HKB000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$O000
TR TR ThR TR Th TAT TAT

Revenue KA
Sales to external customers NREHE 14513900 1,649,783 64,612 1,958,656 - - 18,186,951
Sales of scrap gold and HEESRHEEH

platinum and gold bulion DY - - 409,648 - - - 409,648

14513900 1,649,783 474260 1,958,656 - - 18,596,599

Inter-segment sales NHRHE 78,004 23,732 11,182,264 144,416 - (11,428,416) -
Sales of merchandises HEBm 14,591,004 1673515 11,656,524 2,103,072 - (11.428.416) 18,596,599
Royalty and service income mERREERA - - - - 584,434 - 584,434
Consultancy fee income BEENA - - - - 33,807 - 33,807
Total @3t 14591904 1673515 11,656,524 2,103,072 618,331 (11,428416) 19,214,930
Results of reportable segments T2HHHER 1,660,138 38,973 159,756 172,690 413,66 - 0444823
Areconcliation of results of IERHPEES

reportable segments to profit ~ FAEFHENT -
for the year is as follows:

Results of reportable segments T2HHHER 2,444,823
Unallocated income N 50,059
Unallocated expenses AARER (186,127)
Operating profit EgRn 2,308,755
Finance income HEMA 15,167
Finance costs BRER (2,844)
Share of results of an associate  [Ef—REFS N EI£4 (259)
Profit before income tax e ERAR#H 2,320,819
Income tax expenses FEREX (453 545)
Profit for the year EhiRdl 1,867,274
Non-controlling interests FEkER (2,346)

Profit attributable to equity ~ AXFHERKEEA
holders of the Company FE{5R% 1,864,928
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SBEH(HE)
Year enced 31 March 2014
BENUEIAS AILER
Retailing -
HongKong,  Retaiing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macauand ~ Mainland  Wholesaling-  Mainland Inter-segment ~ segments
0Verseas China Hong Kong China  Licensing ~ elimination Total  Unallocated Total
2E-%4 BE- i - L 12

EARE  RERY Bt tERE  RERR B oPE AR g
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0
T TAL TAL A TEm TEm TEr T TAI

Depreciation of property, % BEREENE

plant and equipment (67,062) (19,658) (1,965) (11,846) (6,101) - %,622) (18982 (115604)
Amortisaton of land use rights - T4 FiER - - - (467) (6,653 - 7,120 (13 (1133
Depreciaion of mvestment~~ RENIERE
propertes - - - - - - - (1.212) (1,212)
Addtons of non-curent SEFEBEERE
assels 102,951 20830 18979 30939 73914 - 4613 13,299 257912
As at 31 March 2014
Ro0MEIASE
Retaiing -
HongKong,  Retaiing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macauand ~ Manland Wholesaing-  Mainland Infer-segment ~ segments
0Verseas China Hong Kong China Licensing ~ elimination Totl  Unallocated Tofal
RE-FE BE- i - AR 128

ke wER Bt GERM  RERR R 2 R ) Lo
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSOO
TR Ter TAL TBL TAr TAm TEr TR Thn

Seqment assefs ABEE BT 1261126 596280 1299091 487143 (70514 8250311 8250311
Interests in an associate R-FBELTER 7046 7046
Land and buildings HhREF W70 25710
Investment propertes RENE 4596 1598
Defered income taxassets ~ EEFTEREE 3211 3211
Otherunalocated assets 2t EEE 102205 102295
Total assets #aE 9,586,156
Seqment fabilties S9ER (84139 (0121 (81893 (138116 (48R0 7T05M (G867 (878677)
Deferred income tax iabifies  EAERAE G479 (54799
Current income tax iabiities ~ FVERFTER B & Qu797)  (248797)
Bark borrowings #ER (3680000 (568,000)
Other unalocated iabilties ~ EttFATEE (19673 (136,734
Totalliabilities g8k (1,887,001)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenues are mainly derived from Hong
Kong customers, Mainland China visitors to Hong
Kong and Macau and Mainland China customers. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue by location in which the
transaction took place is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

6 SEHAHGE)
AEBZRAEEREEEZEF - R
B BURPT 2 R B P E o B Pty
2EF  BRPETLIOEE D 2 RE

BULADHTET ¢
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
T THTT

Revenue WA
Hong Kong aBE
Mainland China A [ A D
Macau and overseas SEPT K AN

9,513,081 11,957,141
4,003,262 4,226,770
2,406,365 3,031,019

15,922,708 19,214,930

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other
than deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale
financial assets, derivative financial instrument, rental
deposits and loan to an associate) by location of assets
is as follows:

2015
Macau
Hong  Mainland and
Kong China  overseas

¢ tEAY  AMRES
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Fén TR Fin

REEMGEME D ARBEERBEE
(TEREELEMEHEE  AIHfHEES
MEE -TEEeRMIE HekeRkE
KT —KBERR) AT

2014
Macau
Hong  Mainland and
Total Kong China  overseas Total

@t BE hEMD  EFREN it
HK$000  HK§000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TER TER TEnL TATL

Property, plant and equipment 1% BE L& % 360417 222,088 26,507

Land use rights THERE - 224,888
Investment properties RENE 37,309 8,483
Interests in associates REEAE 2R 245,934 -
Trading licence RHRR 1,080 -

Prepayment for purchase EEET
of bullding and land use THERER
right and equipment RECRNER - -

618,012 334288 197925 34,108 566,321

224,883 - 182576 - 182,576
45,792 39,124 6,802 - 45,926
245,934 7,046 - - 7,046
1,080 1,080 - - 1,080

- - 73,939 - 73,939

663,740 455,454 26,507

1,185,701 381538 461242 34,108 876,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

7 OTHER INCOME 7 HflgA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET

Value-added tax refund (Note i) BEFRK(HEED 118,598 50,067

Government subsidies (Note ii) BT B (FRE i) 29,181 34,909

Rental income HeUA 10,883 12,145

Others HA 15,724 10,389

174,386 107,510

Notes: B3 -

(i) This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland (i) AR ER BN R ISR 2 R RS
China; the amount of refund is based on 13% of the cost of the FIEOEAKN A 13%TE - HRAEE A
imported diamonds. The Group is entitled to the refund as it is a LBEAZRSFZKE - MBAITER LS
member of the Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds EARGMED - RS EBREERRK -
are imported through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange.

(i) This represents subsidies from a municipal government in (ii) 1t 7 PR B A 4 T BT B i 2 4 B o

Mainland China.
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OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging the

8 HEERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

BN AT ZREEIINT

following:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost of sales SHE AR
- cost of inventories sold (Note) —BEFERA (M) 11,887,329 14,807,397
— cost of licensing business (Note) N ED) 203,841 193,379
12,091,170 15,000,776
Staff costs (including the BIMRA(BIEEEHE)
directors’ emoluments) 747,560 733,873
Operating lease KERE
— minimum lease payments —&IEEE R 587,003 474,440
- contingent rents — sk AHE 151,266 211,773
Commission expenses to TRMERAFERARZAERAX
credit card companies 131,339 168,266
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERREITE
and equipment 146,766 115,604
Depreciation of investment properties & &¥EITE 1,303 1,212
Amortisation of land use rights - b {5 PR A £ 9,661 7,133
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE BER
plant and equipment Bz EE 755 2,530
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 5,040 4,418

Note: Cost of inventories sold and cost of licensing business

include staff costs (including the directors’ emoluments) of

HK$269,776,000 (2014: HK$216,148,000).

OTHER GAINS, NET

9 Hftlkz - BH

Mzt : BEEFERARDEEBRABIEES TRA
(BIREEME)269,776,000/8 7T (20144 ¢
216,148,000787T) °

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Net realised gains on derivative PTHESRIAZ
financial instruments BRI FEE 12,974 49,018
Net unrealised gains on derivative PTHESRMIAZ
financial instruments KRB F5E = 14,528
Fair value gain on convertible AMBRESF A BEKE
bond (Note 23) (MiEE£23) 9,655 -
Net realised gain on gold loans = EBEZBEBENEFE 14,874 -
Net unrealised gain on gold EREBEARER N FE
loans (Note 36) (Ffi3E36) 8,687 -
Net exchange gains/(losses) PE 5 ks (B518) /F58 9,222 (2,397)
Others Hth (819) 168
54,593 61,317
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 FINANCE INCOME, NET 10 MBI A » B8
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Finance income: AU
- Bank interest income —IRITHFLBHA 44,357 15,167
- Effective interest income —BRT—RBERRZ
on the loan to an associate ERRF B WA 2,953 -
— Interest income on the — ;B ES 2 FEWA
convertible bond 1,403 -
— Interest income on the loan —BRTFTFXWERFZ
to an associate F B WA 161 -
48,874 15,167
Finance costs: BTG AS :
- Interest expenses on bank —IRITERZFEAX
borrowings (18,820) (2,844)
— Interest expenses on gold loans —EEEEZFBEAX (1,654) -
(20,474) (2,844)
Finance income, net MBKA - B8 28,400 12,323
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11 FiRAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate BEFEBDIZBAFE M ERT R
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable FIEFHE16.5% (2014 4F : 16.5%) 5H1E
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been Bl o BINEF BB FEAE
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the JEE%EUL}E?'J BEAREBEBTERE R
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in MEE
which the Group operates.
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Current taxation: BUEARR IE -
- Hong Kong profits tax —HBEFEH 149,802 192,161
— overseas taxation — BINRIE 173,054 248,307
— under-provision —BAFERETR
in prior years 2,520 4,882
Deferred income tax (Note 33) EEFTSHL (M52 33) 36,814 8,195
362,190 453,545
Overseas taxation mainly represent the corporate /i’il\mﬁ}zz%a R Wﬁﬂm%ﬁﬁ S &
income tax in Mainland China and the complementary BTSSR  HoBlEHME25%
tax in Macau and is calculated at tax rate of 25% (2014: (2014¢ 125%) M REREI%E12%
25%) and the progressive rate ranging from 9% to 12% (20144 : 9% E12%) 1 & o
(2014: 9% to 12%), respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11

12

13

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

11

R RMAX ()
AEERFAEHINEN 2 HBRFERS
BHEFEZERHMEEZENT ¢

using the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Profit before income tax Fx ER1S AT 1,982,818 2,320,819
Add: Share of results of associates hnc B L E A R A 21,793 259
2,004,611 2,321,078
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% & 16.5% (20144 : 16.5%)
(2014: 16.5%) STEZHIE 330,761 382,978
Effect of different taxation rates Htha A ERBE TR 8
in other jurisdictions (7,668) 42,150
Income not subject to taxation BERT 2 WA (16,426) (8,877)
Expenses not deductible for AR 2 2
taxation purposes 9,583 7,009
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 2,520 4,882
Unrecognised tax losses REER T IBEE 12,297 14,079
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B) R AL R AT B E 18
tax losses (21) (1,000)
Withholding tax on undistributed B i B 8 A B R IR
profit of those subsidiaries in Az B
Mainland China 31,144 12,324
362,190 453,545

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company to the extent of HK$697,329,000 (2014:
HK$798,369,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$1,614,805,000 (2014:
HK$1,864,928,000) and the weighted average number
of 589,107,850 (2014: 589,107,850) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2015 and 2014 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years.

12

13

FLAFIHRISAAEGRR

RARB B ERERANEIE Z AR #E
= F A AR R T A 697,329,000%8 7T
(2014 4F : 798,369,000 7T °

sERETF
ERERBRDREAAREZEES
A JE A5 7K 5 3% ) 1,614,805,000 78 7T
(20144 : 1,864,928,00078 7T ) & £
REBRTERKRZ NEFHHK
589,107,850 % (2014 4F : 589,107,850
B EHE -

R F R B BT BB ERERUEN
HE - WE E 20159 K20145E3 A
SIHLEFEZBREERFEGRER
BFFER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

14 DIVIDENDS 14 IRBR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHEIT
2014/15 interim, paid, of HK$0.55 2IER2014/15 FEE R HAR 2
(2013/14 interim: HK$0.63) T TR 0.55 87T (2013/14
per ordinary share FEFRHRKRE  0.638L) 324,009 371,138
2014/15 final, proposed, of HK$0.55 ##k 2014/15 & [Z K EARR 5
(2013/14 final: HK$0.638) BT 0.55 87T (2013/14
per ordinary share (Note) FERAKS 1 0.6387ET)
(Be3%) 324,009 375,851
Note: D

At a meeting held on 25 June 2015, the directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.55 per ordinary share, totalling
HK$324,009,000. Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company on 19 August 2015.
This proposed dividend is not reflected as dividends payable in these
financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
earnings for the year ending 31 March 2016.

15 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

R2016F6 A25 ARIT28F L - EEEHRNMAR
HIR BB E @A 0.56578 7T + & £324,009,000 7%
TL o BARBAFREERARN201548 A19H
BOZRRAFRSHE - HERR ST EELE
R RIS - R ABE 201646
3AB1BILFEZRBRBF DB

15 BHEHEE

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net contributions to pension plans REFEBERPHRZ
charged to the consolidated RN EIHEOERE
income statement 35,845 31,583

The expense is recognised in the following line items in BEREZTIRGEERR A TIERRE
the consolidated income statement: R

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Selling and distribution costs HEMRDHE R 33,149 29,241
Administrative expenses THEA 2,696 2,342
35,845 31,583

At 31 March 2015, there were no unutilised forfeited
contributions (2014 Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R AR MR

15 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
(Continued)

(i)

(i

(i)

The Group contributes to a defined contribution
scheme for certain of its employees in Hong Kong,
under which the Group and its employee each
contributes 5% of the employee’s salaries. The
forfeited contributions made by the Group and the
related accrued interest are used to reduce the
Group’s future employer contribution.

For the Group’s employees in Hong Kong who do
not take part in the defined contribution scheme,
the Group contributes to an MPF Scheme, under
which the Group and its employee each makes
monthly contribution to the scheme at 5% of the
qualifying earnings of the employee, subject to a
monthly cap HK$1,500 (2014: HK$1,250).

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China also
contributes to retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China at a percentage of their salaries in
compliance with the requirements of the respective
municipal governments in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligation of all existing and
future retired employees of the Group in Mainland
China.

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to
the directors of the Company during the year were
as follows:

15 BHFEFEE (&)

(i)

(i

(i)

AEESHETEERERIAE
WA S BUAKEREEEY
AXNMEIHSEBIERHK - K
KB 2 R R AR N E '
RERM O AREBBRZ BEHK -

AL BN EmL R FEH-REEIN
BEBREEME AEBATHBEE
R EFIEREREE  BHASE
BEREEEHEREEZAEERA
BE%IEFAMHNR - T AMNKEL
PR 71,50078 7T (2014 4F : 1,250 7%
JL) °

AEBRTEANM 2 [HEBARITRE
PR E AT BT 2 HE R
HERPBERHERIFL AR S
—E BN ZRKET IR - T
I REAFEMBRA RRKAEH
R B EE 2 RIKENEE -

16 EEREREEAEM2
(a) EEM<

FRENARREZES ZMe BN
™

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Fees we 2,105 2,084
Salaries, allowances and e RMREDAZ

benefit-in-kinds 58,337 58,540
Performance and discretionary &2 & IBEIFEE M 2 1AL

bonuses 29,532 34,946

Contributions to pension plan  E{RE&FH IR 310 308

Total director emoluments, ENEEMERER

payable and expensed in M mE S B

the financial statements 90,284 95,878
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are B R MR

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 EFREREEASHNMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS ($8)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM& (&)
The remuneration of each director is set out below: ZEFZHEEH T
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE2015F3A31BLEE

Salaries, Performance Employer’s

allowances and contribution
and benefit- discretionary  to pension Total
Name of director Fees in-kinds bonuses plan emoluments

wg &R L E3 ]

AWR  BREER  EHeHD
EnE e EWAE Z Tl Zhw  Hedn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER T&R

WONG Wai Sheung BER 55 54,485 13,876 159 68,575
TSE Moon Chuen BNk 55 1,328 4,270 55 5,708
WONG Ho Lung, Danny EEE 100 202 712 7 1,021
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BEE 55 631 4,270 26 4,982
WONG Hau Yeung Easl 55 880 5,123 37 6,095
CHUNG Vai Ping E2k 55 631 1,281 26 1,993
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BER 110 60 - 170
HUI Chiu Chung Hices 110 60 - 170
LI Hon Hung TEE 110 60 - - 170
WONG Yu Pok, Marina B 250 - - - 250
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander * AR 300 - - - 300
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen * Eme 300 - - - 300
FOK Kwong Man * BB 300 - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Ahvin # Bk 250 - - - 250

2,105 58,337 29,532 310 90,284
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e SRR

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2014

16 EEREREEARH:

(&)

(a) EFEM& ()
HE201443 31 HILFE

Salaries, Performance  Employer's
allowances and  contribution
and benefit-  discretionary  to pension Total
Name of director Fees in-kinds bonuses plan  emoluments
e BER =53]
RUR BEER RKeHE
BEfY ik ENFIE LI s Wews
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ter  FEL TEL TEL TR
WONG Wai Sheung BER 55 54,429 14,655 152 69,291
TSE Moon Chuen Hnz 55 1,306 4509 52 5,022
WONG Ho Lung, Danny Bk 55 491 4,509 19 5,074
WONG Hau Yeung 56 55 866 5,411 35 6,367
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy Bl 55 623 4,509 25 5,212
CHUNG Vai Ping EZk 55 622 1,358 25 2,055
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BER 10 60 - - 170
HUI King Wai TR (R 20135
(resigned on 20 August 2013) 8A20BE) 42 23 - - 65
HUI Chiu Chung Bk 10 60 - - 170
LI Hon Hung Tl 110 60 - - 170
LO Mun Lam, Raymond EHR(R2013F
(resigned on 20 August 2013) * 8A20AEM)! 116 - - - 116
WONG Yu Pok, Marina BME(R20135
(appointed on 20 August 2013) ¢ 8A20BEZRE) 154 - - - 154
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander # HER* 281 - - - 281
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen * ERme 300 - - - 300
FOK Kwong Man * BB 281 - - - 281
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin * BB 250 - - - 250
2,084 58,540 34,946 308 95,878
# Independent non-executive directors. # BFEMITES

No directors waived their emoluments in respect of
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

HZE2015F K 2014F3A31HIEFE I

EEERENSE
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e SRR

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

16

EEREREEASHS
(#%)

(b) AEBEHMAL

Among the five highest paid individuals, four hEEaHFMATES  TH
(2014: three) of them are directors of the Company (2014F : =4&) %$QE§$ '
and the details of their remuneration are disclosed HEZMESFBER LRIFE -
in the preceding paragraph. The emoluments fh— % (2014F : MB) &= #ﬁ@ﬂ
of the remaining one (2014: two) highest paid ALTZBESwT -
individual are as follows:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Salaries, allowances and e FAREDNZ
benefit-in-kinds 3,361 5,271
Performance and discretionary 1% &R IFBIG 3 2 TEAL
bonuses 2,135 8,567
Contributions to pension plan  RKE 2|t 139 200
5,635 14,038

The emoluments fall within the following bands:

mEZMENF THAR -

HK$5,000,001
HK$5,500,001
HK$8,500,001

- HK$5,500,000
- HK$6,000,000
- HK$9,000,000

5,000,001 B7CE 5,500,000 7T
5,500,001 B 7CE 6,000,000 7T
8,500,001 B7CZE 9,000,000 7T

(c) Senior management’s emoluments (c)
The emoluments fall within the following bands:

HK$1,500,001
HK$2,000,001
HK$2,500,001
HK$3,500,001
HK$5,000,001
HK$5,500,001
HK$8,500,001

- HK$2,000,000
- HK$2,500,000
- HK$3,000,000
- HK$4,000,000
- HK$5,500,000
- HK$6,000,000
- HK$9,000,000

1,500,001 &L Z 2,000,000 % 7T
2,000,001 7L E 2,500,000/ T
2,500,001 /B7CE 3,000,000/ T
3,500,001 /B7LE 4,000,000/ T
5,000,001 B E 5,500,000/ 7T
5,500,001 /B7CE 6,000,000/ 7T
8,500,001 /B7LE 9,000,000/ 7T

2015 2014
- 1
1 —
1 2
Eﬁ BEARMS
wEZMENF IR -
2015 2014
1
1 —
1 —
1 —
- 1
4 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE B R AR M R

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group &
Furniture
and fixtures
and
landand  Leasehold  computer  Plantand Motor  Construction
buildings improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles  in progress Total
B8 & RER HER
HREF  WERE  RERG ] RE  HBRIE #n
HK$ 1000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK§000
Tin T TR T Thn Thn Thn
At1 April 2013 B013%4R18
Cost 23 381,110 258,080 120,664 37,756 20513 2319 843,442
Accumulated depreciation ZiffE (o3 (173307) (12,219 (29,699 (11,699) - )
Net book value FEFE 340,764 84,773 18,445 8,057 8814 %319 516,172
Year ended 31 March 2014 BENUEIBNALEE
Opening net book value ENEREE 340,764 84,773 18,445 8,057 8814 25319 516,172
Exchange differences EiZE (39) 8 112 54 3 B 529
Addtions HE 489 136,606 24,950 4,954 1131 15,683 183,323
Transfer to ivestment properties BRERENE (14823 - - - - - (14,823
Disposals ik - (2105) (1,143 (29) - - (3276)
Reclassfication Exipd - (136) 136 - - - -
Depreciation charge fETH 8373) (719,122 (20,655 (3616) (3,636) - (115604
Closing net book value FXERFE 318,020 140544 51,145 9231 6,346 41,035 566,321
At 31 March 2014 H014E3A31A
Cost Bk 35418 377,789 140415 4,270 20,900 41,085 986,827
Accumulated depreciation 23T (7308 (287249) (89,270) (32,039 (14,554) - (20508
Net book value EmsE 318,020 140544 51,145 9,231 6,346 11,035 566,321
Year ended 31 March 2015 EENEIRN ALER
Opening net book value ENEEFE 318,020 140,544 51,145 9,231 6,346 41,035 566,321
Exchange differences EiZE (332) (331) (69) (13) 0 (152) (904)
Addltons HE 56,575 99,886 21,54 15,494 3930 2817 200,243
Transfer from ivestment properties ~~ SRENEER 866 - - - - - 866
Disposals ik - (697) (1,036) (15) - - (1,748)
Reclassfication Exipi 43,700 - - - - (43,700) -
Depreciaton charge it (11,050) (93753 (30,674 (7,455) (3,834) - [146,766)
Closing net ook value EREESE 407,119 145,649 40,907 17,242 6,435 - 618,012
At 31 March 2015 R201553R31 R
Cost B 466,511 448,229 156,924 55,969 2,793 - 1,151,426
Accumulated depreciation ZifE (5873 (302580 (116,017) (38,727) (17,358) - (533414
Net book value EmsE 407,119 145,649 40,907 17,42 6,435 - 618,012
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 W% - BER&M ()
(Continued)
Net book values of the land and buildings are analysed T MEFZEREFESTOT
as follows:
Group &EH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FHET
Building outside Hong Kong, ERBAIMEE 2
held on land with: BFRINIGAEE :
- Leases of over 50 years —50F A A 331 340
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years ~ — 10 & 50 F=FH 4 144,606 92,310
Land and building in Hong Kong, EREBZ IR
held on land with: BFRINIGAFEE :
- Leases of over 50 years —50F A A 857 -
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years ~ — 10 & 50 F=FH 4 261,985 225,370
407,779 318,020
18 LAND USE RIGHTS 18 L ik
Group L]
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Year ended 31 March HE3AMHIEFE
Opening net book amount FYIRMEFE 182,576 188,717
Addition NE 52,622 650
Amortisation charge BiEER (9,661) (7,133)
Exchange differences ME 5 =58 (654) 342
Closing net book amount FARERHEFE 224,883 182,576
At 31 March M3HA31H
Cost [DEN 252,289 200,408
Accumulated amortisation RET#EH (27,406) (17,832)
224,883 182,576
The net book amount of land use rights is analysed as THE A BREFESTAT
follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHIT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EBEBAIMBRIZ T T AFFE ¢
- Leases of over 50 years —50F LA %Y 686 699
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years  — 10 & 50 F=FH 4 224,197 181,877
224,883 182,576
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19

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19 BEYE
Group L]
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT T
At 1 April R4 A1H 45,926 32,303
Addition NE 2,060 -
Transfer to property, HIBEME - HE MR
plant and equipment (866) -
Transfer from property, HEBEEME BB MR
plant and equipment - 14,823
Depreciation e (1,303) (1,212)
Exchange difference ME 5 = %R (25) 12
At 31 March M3HA31H 45,792 45,926
At 31 March M3A31H
Cost PR R 52,542 51,732
Accumulated depreciation ZExtine (6,750) (5,806)
45,792 45,926
At valuation (Note) HE (MEE) 160,943 158,030

Note: The valuation of the investment properties as at 31 March
2015 and 2014 were determined by independent valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited and Roma Appraisals Limited respectively, at
open market value.

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
net book values are analysed as follows:

Mi3E © R 2015F K 2014F 3 A31 B2 EMEL
BEAREBE LG EMPFTETEERAA
LBESBERTEERARIEARMEET ©

AEBMREEYE Z EERERTFE
DITWR -

Group
=M
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FHT
Building outside Hong Kong, ERBUIMBE 2 EF
held on land with: BTG AFEE :
— Leases of between —10ZE 50 F /4
10 to 50 years 8,483 6,802
Land and building in Hong Kong, EEBZ L RIETF
held on land with: BTINHREE
- Leases of over 50 years —50F A A 380 1,267
— Leases of between —10E 50 F /M4
10 to 50 years 36,929 37,857
45,792 45,926
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NN R RS ek

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19 BEYE ()
Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- RIE AN A8 2 A8 & FH & 7R 2R SR UG ER
cancellable operating leases are as follows: ZEHeEENT
Group
RE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Not later than one year —&FR 5,923 6,332
Later than one year and not —FHETBBARAF
later than five years 2,386 4,705
8,309 11,037
20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RBATRZHER
Company
N
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Unlisted investments, at cost JELEMRE » LR AE 298,887 298,887
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A RBRIE 3,039,338 3,039,338
3,338,225 3,338,225

Amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in HK$
and are unsecured, interest-free, not repayable within
next 12 months from the year end date and with no
maturity date.

WP A RBRIBLAE LATE - BRE
R 28 BARBFABARAARK
128 A AEEARLESEE -

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in FTEMB AR ZFBHRY BRI
Note 41 to the financial statements. 49 ©
21 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21 PHRELAFIZHEE
Group
£H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Share of net assets, as at 1 April BIHREESE R481H 7,046 7,303
Acquisition (Note i) Wi (KD 244,810 -
Subscription of CGS Share RIS RIEARAE (MT i)

Option (Note ii) (5,234) -
Effect of shareholder’s loan (Note ii) AR5 &~ 5228 (Bt &Eiii) 19,793 -
Share of results of associates JEMREE N R A (21,793) (259)
Share of reserve movement FE(EFARE AT

of associates for the year B {1 1,312 2
Share of net assets, as at 31 March  JE(hEEFE - W3HA31H 245,934 7,046
Amount due from JEU —KEE & A E)BRIE (M FEiv)

an associate (Note iv) 30,076 -
Amount due to an associate (Note iv) FEfT—ZKEEE A RIBRIE (M FEiv) (1,674) (1,771)

126
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
March 2015 are as follows:

21

Particulars of

21 RBIELR D ()

AREFEBLATN2015F3A31 B st
BT

Place of issued % of attributable
Name incorporation share capital interests held indirectly Principal activities
& £ 11 5 L 3t B BERTRFEE HESTRGAEEESL IEEE
2015 2014
Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong HK$6,120,000 50% 50% Manufacturing and
Company Limited wholesale of diamond
NEERBRAA A% 6,120,000/5 7T products
BRERRERE
China Gold Silver Group Hong Kong US$3,334 50% - Retailing and franchising
Company Limited B 3,334 %L operations of gold and
(“CGS") jewellery products in
FEEFEEEFRAT Hong Kong, Macau and
(THhELR]) Mainland China
EEE ORPIRREAE
NEELRHEEHER
ZEERBHREER
Notes: Bt E

(ii)

On 6 June 2014, the Company purchased a 50% shareholding
in CGS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Limited (“HKRH”) which is engaged in the retailing
and franchising operations of gold and jewellery products in
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China under the brand name
“8D-GOLD”, at a consideration of approximately HK$245 million
(the “Acquisition”).

The Group accounts for its holding of CGS as investment in an
associated company using equity accounting method.

Prior to the Acquisition, CGS issued to a third party a convertible
bond in the principal amount of US$5 million (equivalent to HK$39
million) (“the MGIL CGS CB”). If the MGIL CGS CB is exercised by
its holder, the Company’s equity interest in CGS will be diluted.

In order to maintain at least 50% ownership of CGS, the
Company subscribed for a CGS Share Option (“CGS Share
Option”) for US$1. The exercise price of the CGS Share Option is
US$5 million at a rate of US$24,390 per CGS conversion share.

The exercise period is from the date of issue to 3 months after (i)
15 January 2018 or (ii) the date as extended once by one year by
mutual agreement.

As the CGS Share Option is negotiated as part of the Acquisition,
the fair value of the CGS Share Option at its date of subscription
is deducted from the initial investment consideration for the
Acquisition at date of completion of the Acquisition.

The CGS Share Option was initially recognised at HK$5,234,000
and no subsequent revaluation was performed at year end as the
directors consider any change during the period is not material.
The fair value at the date of completion of the Acquisition was
assessed by an independent valuer by using the Trinomial Option
Pricing Model.

H2014F6A6H  RARBEAPEHSDIR
2.50% % # - X (B %) /43 245,000,000 7% 7T
(TWeBg ) - FESRABTBEREBRERD
RI([BBERER]) Z22EAMBRAR » £2
INT&Z8 | RIEERS - BPIRPBIARRER
FECRUEEMNERZTERETREE
7?}; °

AEBBRTESRZHRER—KBERQ
BIRE  UEmEEALR -

WEERT  PESRE—F=ZFEITHAHR
M 1E% - A& % A5,000,0003 7T (H8 % R
39,000,000/87T) ([MGIL A Bl R AR R (&
%1) o EMGILFESRAIRRESERE A
TE  ARBIRP SR RS TH#E -

RARFRPESBRI0%EERE - A1
R ETTRE— P ESRERE(TFE
SRERE]) - FESRBRIEZITEES
5,000,000 7T * bR AF—RHPERER
B BS 1% 24,390 7T °

IESAREITHE() 201841 A 15 H 8k (i)
LHERESF—AMERZBE=MA -

MRS RBRREIE RIS — S M
A PESREBEERBEER ZAAEE
TIRFERMEE E AR S B RERN

7 B & 4R B AR 1 9] 5 12 5,234,000 7% It 1
R HBERBRTEETER  BAEER
BHRZEZBHHMTRE - WETKEBZA
REED—RBGEMA=EXGEEE
R o
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21

22

23

128

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21 PHREBLATFIZHE ()
Notes: (Continued) sk - (&)
@iy  The amount of HK$19,793,000 represents the difference (iii) ©%819,793,000 B T iE R B 2 EEEE
between the nominal value of the shareholder’s loan and its fair DREEZ5 (kFE22 frit) -
value as mentioned in Note 22.
(ivy  Amount due from an associate of HK$30,076,000 represents (iv) FEUT — 5B 2 X 530,076,000 78 7T 2 BRIE A
trade receivables due from the company. B SRR °
Amount due from/(to) associates are denominated in HK$ and Y (FEfT) —REE & QR BRIE S Tt
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B BEEKHF 28 REERERE -
(v) The Group’s associates did not have any significant capital (v) NEE RS AR 2015F £ 2014F 3 A
commitments as at 31 March 2015 and 2014. 31 B EAT( ERE ARG o
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE 22 EERF—ZFXBELT
Loan to an associate included under non-current assets: BERF—FRELE N BEREIIERESHE
=
In connection with the Acquisition, both of the ot BEETR - AR R RBFEE R
Company and HKRH agreed each to provide funding BHREZEB—EREER  MPHE
of HK$100,000,000 to CGS by way of shareholder loan #R 2 £ 100,000,000 TE® * 1EAR—
for general working capital and business expansion REBES MNEKETR -
purpose.
The shareholder loan is unsecured, interest-free and has BREEZEERE . 28 BEETFE
no fixed term of repayment. FREEHR o
The difference between the nominal value of the loan Bz EEHRE R R EE80,207,0008
and its fair value of HK$80,207,000 at the time of the TORA IR B 2 2 5819,793,000 7 T 15
acquisition amounting to HK$19,793,000 is regarded as RPESHEREXA(ME21) 22—
part of the cost of the investment in CGS (Note 21). e
Loan to an associate included under current assets: BERF—ZXBELARBERERHE
B=
On 5 November 2014, the Group and HKRH each R2014F 11 A58 » AEEEREER
agreed to provide a short term shareholder loan of ZEREERERT SRS HAKRE
HK$20,000,000 to CGS. The short term shareholder B 20, OOO 0008 T » MHIR R ERF
loan is interest bearing at 2% per annum and repayable BA2% - WAER2015F5 A4 HEIHE
on 4 May 2015. The loan was subsequently extended. g o %?ﬂﬁqﬁﬁﬁi\%ﬁﬁ o
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 23 1€ TH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E&RT FET
Non-current portion JEEPRARB 5>
Convertible bond (Note i) AR ES (M) 66,735 -
Current portion EPRIER
Gold future contracts (Note ii) = HEAH (MEEG) - 14,5628
CGS Share Option (Note 21 (ii)) B SR B AR (FIEE 21 (i) 5,234 -
71,969 14,528
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23 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(Continued)

24

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

On 6 June 2014, the Company subscribed a convertible bond of
HKRH of HK$57,080,000 with 3% interest rate per annum and
5 years of maturity from the date of issuance. The conversion
period commences on the 2nd anniversary of the issue date and
expiries on the date which is three days before its maturity.

The convertible bond comprises a loan receivable component
and option component which together have been designated as
derivative financial instrument by the Company. The convertible
bond was initially recognised at HK$57,080,000 and subsequent
revalued to HK$66,735,000 at year end.

The fair value as at year end was valued by an independent
valuer by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model. The key
assumptions used are share price of HKRH of HK$0.196,
exercise price of HK$0.18, dividend yield of 0%, effective interest
rate of 20.66%, volatility of 48.52% and risk-free rate of 0.97%.
The fair value gain of HK$9,655,000 was included under “other
gains, net” in the consolidated income statement.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the fair value of the derivative financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheet. The derivative financial instruments
are not qualified for hedge accounting.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

23 THEamMIAE)

GEE

(i) MR2014F6A6H ARAAIREEEEIR
22 {% A 2 % {& % 57,080,000 7 7T 0 F F &
3% ' FETT AR AT 5 N EIEE o HARHER
BTAMERMBFHAEEHBRSKER

ABMEEFEEERKEREBERE AR
RAEERMESBMIA - JRKREBSK
57,080,000 8 LT H FHER - RN EIR
E 1 /566,735,000 87T °

R Z AR BEARBHERE A =15
EEEEXTE - TAEERIAEBER
R B D B8 0.1968 T ~ 1T EE0.1878
7T REFIE 0% - BERFE20.66% * KR
48.52% K ERR F0.97% ° WEB AR EE
1% 9,655,000 8 7T + Wt AZEBEEHE
2 TE e - SF58] -

(i) MNBEEARSRzESEERRANGARE
EEBERPITESRMIAZAAEE - TE
ERMTERNEEITEFTZER -

24 MfHHESHEE

ASSETS

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
T THT
At 1 April R4A1H 13,500 -
Additions NE - 8,100

Net (loss)/gain transfer EREER
to equity (Note 32) F (B8R, ke (MsEs2) (4,680) 5,400
At 31 March ®3A31H 8,820 13,500

Available-for-sale financial assets represent common
shares issued by a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. The available-for-sale financial assets
are denominated in HK$. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the
securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

AfHESREER —FRBXP LD
ZREBETZEBR - AIELESRE
ENBTLFE - RBERRFRZES
FERRADEAAIHRKESREE L
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130

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 25 &#& - F{IIEIE R X fhFE U

RECEIVABLES RIR
Group
&E
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
TRz FHT
Non-current JEENER
Rental deposits Hekse 128,517 115,994
Prepayment for purchase BEET ItHwERAER
of building, land use right BB BRI
and equipment - 73,939
128,517 189,933
Current BN ER
Rental deposits Hekse 45,300 30,916
Value-added tax recoverable AT EEET 106,362 121,280
Prepayments TERTERIE 37,961 31,931
Interest receivables FEWR B, 20,264 -
Other receivables H fth fE Y AR TR 22,589 16,245
Other deposits Hizs 25,225 74,508
257,701 274,880
386,218 464,813
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits, NEE IS - FERBETE K& E 4 jE U B
prepayments and other receivables approximate BYEEEEEAREBEAE  WIT
their fair values and are denominated in the following NS y=3=-V vk
currencies:
Group
|
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
Fi#x FHT
HK$ BT 189,279 190,287
RMB AR 148,143 232,466
MOP BT 45,840 39,467
Other currencies Hi gk 2,956 2,593
386,218 464,813
The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has e REMEWREZ ZEEEER
been assessed by reference to historical information 2EBMBEFAERE R 7 BEFER#E
about the counterparty default rates. The existing TG - HAEHFHF BT EME KD
counterparties have not defaulted in the past. At 31 $% - M2015F3A31H WEZRES N
March 2015, no deposits and other receivables were HiEwBEESE AE B E (2014 4F -
considered impaired (2014: Nil). /).
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26

27

28

INVENTORIES - GROUP 26 EE—£H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Finished goods BIRK 7,276,696 6,222,756
Raw materials ER R 118,000 2,524
7,394,696 6,225,280

At 31 March 2015, inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$253,377,000
(2014: HK$14,483,000).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES
- COMPANY

The balances are denominated in HK$ and are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s sales to retail customers comprised mainly
cash sales and credit card sales. Concessionaire sales
through department stores and sales to wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms ranging from 0
to 90 days.

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

27

28

R2015F 3 A31H & a &8 FEFER
ZIEFE#X /253,377,000 7T (2014 £ -
14,483,000 7T) °

FEd~ (FE ) B} B 4 B BR
T — 2
SR B - AW
% B RBRERMEE -

5 5B R R
AREATEEFHEIRORASH
ERERRHEE BEASHFHER
APEBEFHEZERR BN TOE
90 R -

B RBARE 2 RN T -

Group
5

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0-30 days 0&30H 145,674 160,058
31-60 days 31E60H 49,004 38,850
61-90 days 61290 H 2,163 14,295
91-120 days 91 %120 H 1,033 8,334
Over 120 days HBiE 120 H 2,885 4,401
200,759 225,938

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate
their fair values.

ZREWERZREEREEAAEER

ot 18
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B BHRRNE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

28 WHEKER (&)

AEENE ZEERE 2 FREE T
BHHE

Group
L]

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FET
HK$ BT 24,750 45,597
RMB AR 161,040 159,130
MOP SR 12,912 19,376
Other currencies Hibh g 2,057 1,835
200,759 225,938

The credit quality of trade receivables has been
assessed by reference to historical default rate of the
counterparty. The existing counterparties have not
defaulted in the past.

As at 31 March 2015, trade receivables of
HK$3,918,000 were past due but not considered

EoORERNRBEEEEENEB2EYHTF
FBERER L REITG - BAEYHTFS
BN AR 8k o

M2015F3HA31H @ BREBBEIOENE
5 FE W BR 18 3,918,000/8 T A D @ AR E

I 4 28 A :
impaired (2014: HK$12,735,000) all of which were aged I%[_ 542 73R 18 (2014 4F : 12,735,000
over 90 days. AL °
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 29 B RBITHER
Group Company
M| NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TFET FH&TT FET FHET
Short-term bank deposits 52 HAE 1717 5K 141,945 471,020 = 38,630
Cash at bank and on hand R{ITFER KL FERE 1,233,134 1,175,455 2,882 18,232
Cash and cash equivalents IR& NIREEEY 1,375,079 1,646,475 2,882 56,862
Short-term bank deposits, EIH A8 =8 A &
with maturities over REERSRTTIFE X
3 months 715,048 158,462 = 37,176
Total cash and bank H& MIBTTE SRS
balances 2,090,127 1,804,937 2,882 94,038
Weighted average effective  JN#E 5 F B A=
interest rate 4.10% 2.06% N/A 3.07%
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29

30

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

20 BaRBITHER (&)

Group Company
%EH o7
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FERT TAET FET TAET

Denominated in: SHEEK
HK$ BT 404,622 367,188 2,754 18,228
RMB AR 1,578,961 1,328,858 123 75,810
MOP JEPITT 40,160 69,804 = -
us$ ETT 58,454 24,215 5 -
Other currencies EmE® 7,930 14,872 = -

2,090,127 1,804,937 2,882 94,038

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term bank deposits
are with initial terms of less than three months and
earn interest at the respective time deposits rates. The
conversion of the RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS

RITRSRE BRITF B 7 NA R
HME - REBRITERNEZ SO =@
A XRE B BF KA ERRAE
NARBINEZ R AR BINERZF
B R i 8 e 2 SN B 1 AR Rl BOR R P AR
BR -

30 WHEMIER - HthEMIR
AR EtRIF

Group Company
£H 2F]
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000

FERx TAET FET FTAT

Trade payables 2 SN IRIE 217,909 337,992 - -
Deposits from customers  HREEFE REHTREZ
and licensees Hisn 333,236 260,726 - -
Salaries and welfare e H & M a A
payables 181,537 191,742 - -
Other payables H b T ARIE 104,720 94,209 - -
Accrued expenses JEFTE R 64,724 94,454 1,162 2,074
902,126 979,123 1,162 2,074
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30 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES

31

134

AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

The ageing of trade payables is as follows:

30 WHEFMIRER - HtEMIR

HEER&IEA (&)
HSmAREZ RSN

Group
%H

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 - 30 days 0% 30H 171,675 251,741
31 - 60 days 312 60H 41,532 73,086
61 — 90 days 61290 H 3,395 9,336
91 - 120 days 912120 H 1,285 2,148
Over 120 days HBi® 120 H 22 1,681
217,909 337,992

The carrying amounts of trade payables and other B RNRBEEREMEMNIREZRAE

payables approximate their fair values. BEAREEMES °

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s trade payables, other payables and accruals
are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBEARARZEHRMNERE - Hit
FENBRA R EA R ZREER TIE

WREA
Group Company
&£m| 2F]
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

FEx TAET FET TET

HK$ BT 333,606 481,409 1,162 2,074
RMB AR 421,788 327,722 = -
uss$ = 100,878 80,220 - -
MOP SEFITT 43,307 87,145 - -
Other currencies Hip g 2,547 2,627 = -

902,126 979,123 1,162 2,074

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

(@) Share capital

31 BEXEREHEERE
(a) B&=*

Group and Company
SERLT
2015 2014

No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000

RiE THT in &R TET

Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of BREE1ETZ
HK$0.1 each TR 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
Ordinary shares BREE1 BT
of HK$0.1 each TR 589,107,850 58,910 589,107,850 58,910
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31 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

(Continued)
(b) Share premium

(b) Efr@RR

31 RAERKGRR (&)

Group and Company

SERALT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
At 31 March M3A31H 2,522,983 2,522,983
32 RESERVES 32 %%
(a) Group (a) %M
Available-
for-sale
financial
Capital assets Exchange Statutory Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
T
\ PHEE / L
BAGE Fifs EifE  AERE  REEA it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL TEL TATL TAL TATL
(the i) (the i)
(BizED) (Pszin)
For the year ended BE2014F
31 March 2014 SASIALEE
At 1 April 2013 R2013E4A1R 135,713 - 134,910 92,620 3,479,612 3,842,855
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit attributable to equity RARERRAA
holders of the Company FE (& A - - - - 1864928 1,864,928
Other comprehensive E2EKA/
income/(loss) (B#R)
Currency translation differences B Z%E - - (7,108) - - (7,108)
Remeasurement of employee BT RFAIEANEH:HE
benefit obligations (Note 34(d)  (MfsE34(d)) - - - - 6,711 6,711
Revaluation of avallable-for-sale I HESREER
financial assets (Note 24) BEEH (i 24) - 5,400 - - - 5,400
Total other comprehensive X 2EEKA/
_incomeffloss) BR) T 5400 . A T 6 5008
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
2012/13 final dividend paid BH2012/13EE
*HRE - - - - (82772 (282772
2013/14 interim dividend paid B 20131145
hHRE - - - - (371,138 (371,139
_______________________________________________ T DD 193910 (653910)
At31 March 2014 R2OWESASIA 135713 5400 127802 92620 4697341 5058876
Representing: g
Reserves 1 135,713 5,400 127,802 92,620 4,321,490 4,683,025
Proposed dividend BRRE - - - - 375,851 375,851
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31H 135,713 5,400 127,802 92,620 4,697,341 5,068,876
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32 RESERVES (Continued) 32 #ls ()
(a) Group (Continued) (a) SRME (&)
Available-
for-sale
financial
Capital assets  Exchange  Statutory Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
e
SREE
BERfE 1] EfRtkE  EERE  REEA 1]
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FRL TRL TEL THEL TEL TET
(Note i) (Note i)
(FsEi) (F3ki)
For the year ended EE2015%
31 March 2015 3R ALEE
At 1 April 2014 R2014E4A1R 135,713 5,400 127,802 92,620 4,697,341 5,058,876
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit attributable to equity RREEERBA
holders of the Company el - - - - 1,614,805 1,614,805
Other comprehensive Hft2EEA
income/(loss) (B8)
Currency translation differences  [EXZ% - - (17,932) - - (17,932
Remeasurement of employee B TEFIEEH
benefit obligations (Note 34(d)) ~ EHit&
(P 34(0)) - - - - 3,261 3,261
Revaluation of available-for-sale ~ FEHESREE
financial assets (Note 24) KEEE
(Rt 24) - (4,680) - - - (4,680)
Total other comprehensive ~ EM2EAKA/
income/(loss) (BR) - (4,680) (17,932) - 3,261 (19,351)
Transactions with owners HREAZZS
2013/14 final dividend paid 22013/ 14EE
xHARE - - - - (375851)  (375,851)
2014/15 interim dividend paid 22014 /155
AR E - - - - (324,009  (324,009)
- - - - (699,860) (699,860)
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3A31H 135,713 720 109,870 92,620 5615547 5,954,470
Representing; =
Reserves Bk 135,713 720 109,870 92,620 5,291,538 5,630,461
Proposed dividend BERE - - - - 324,009 324,009
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3A31H 135,713 720 109,870 92,620 5615547 5,954,470
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32 RESERVES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Reserves (Continued)
Notes:

(i) The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired
subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Group’s reorganisation in 1997.

(i) Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers
of these funds are determined by the Board of Directors
of the relevant Mainland China subsidiaries in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China.

32 f&flm (#8)
(a) SRME (&)

Wi -

(i) REEZ EREHIEASEN1997 F B8/
P B 8 R ) 2 B E{E S gt YR fR 1T A

REED 2 MEMERZZE -

(ii) EEREI TR AR - BEERFRIATI M
B E AR AR EESRIEDBEAME
RERRIRBIRE -

Company (b) 27
Contributed Retained
surplus earnings Total
ERER YR HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FET FET
For the year ended HE2015F
31 March 2015 SA31BLLEE
At 1 April 2014 1R2014F4 318 298,687 803,591 1,102,278
Profit for the year FRmF - 697,329 697,329
2013/14 final dividend paid B 2013145
R 2 - (375,851) (375,851)
2014/15 interim dividend paid B 2014155
FER & - (324,009) (324,009)
At 31 March 2015 1201593731 H 298,687 801,060 1,099,747
Representing: =
Reserves = 298,687 477,051 775,738
Proposed dividend EURR S - 324,009 324,009
At 31 March 2015 72015%3A31H 298,687 801,060 1,099,747
For the year ended HE20145F
31 March 2014 SA31ALEE
At 1 April 2013 1R2013%F4 418 298,687 659,132 957,819
Profit for the year FREF - 798,369 798,369
2012/13 final dividend paid B 2012113 &
RERE - (282,772) (282,772)
2013/14 interim dividend paid B 2013145
FEIR R - (371,138) (371,138)
At 31 March 2014 20143 A31H 208,687 803,591 1,102,278
Representing: =
Reserves Eti= 298,687 427,740 726,427
Proposed dividend BIRRE - 375,851 375,851
At 31 March 2014 120143 A31H 298,687 803,591 1,102,278
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32 RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Company (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of Luk
Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value of
net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired
by the Company during the Group’s reorganisation
in 1997. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
distributable to the shareholders, provided that the
Company would, after the payment of dividends
out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or the realisable
value of the Company’s assets would thereby
not be less than the aggregate of its liabilities, its
issued share capital and its share premium. At the
Group level, the contributed surplus is reclassified
into its component of reserves of the underlying
subsidiaries.

33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax of the Group is provided for in

32

33

s (#8)

(b) AT (&)

RNRF 2 EBBHBIEARRT RRZHBLUK
Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited 22
BTERRMBETRGO cEBEEARRQF]
1997 F A& [H 22 45 BRI P U S AR A
BRralvEEFEMECEZRE - BRERA
RE1BIFRADE(KER])  BER
BRADRE TR - EA QA B BEHMAR
RITIREE - Ae RN BB HE
% AARRZEENERERLETE
DREER HEBITRARERMD R
Bo@M RAEEEEMS @ LEH
BHRKENDEASEBNB AR 2R
HEB s o

iR 3T Fr 19 1R
7SR BB TS BT T B AR

respect of: 1
Tax depreciation Unrealised profit on Undistributed profit of those
allowances and tax losses closing inventories subsidiaries in Mainland China Total
RERERRRATER BRERC KGR AOTREMHMELTER L1
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 214 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS 000
Fién Thn Fin T TiEn T TET T
At 1 April w4A1R (2,737) (2.476) 31,646 21,256 (49,491) (37,167) (20,582) (12,387)
(Charged)credited to 74 BER (H1k)/
the consolidated  STA(ME)
income Statement
(Note 11) 1,091 (261) (7,661) 4390 (31,144) (12,324) (36,814) 8,195)
At 31 March H3A31A (746) (2,787) 23,985 31,646 (80,635) (49,491) (57,396) (20,582)
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33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 33 S EEEFRER ()

5

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Deferred income tax assets EEPTSTHEE 28,025 34,211
Deferred income tax liabilities BEREFEHEE (85,421) (54,793)
(57,396) (20,582)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profit is probable. As at 31 March 2015, the Group had
potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$40,887,000 (2014: HK$28,509,000) in respect of
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable
income. Cumulative tax losses of HK$23,088,000 (2014:
HK$8,304,000) can be carried forward indefinitely;
cumulative tax losses of HK$144,513,000 (2014:
HK$106,957,000) will expire (if not utilised) within the
next five years.

FEMSMEEIAE 2 HIEFIAE
R WEEUREBHKERTEG
FI#ERIR B R = ZIH - H201543
A381H  AEEBEERERELH
IH & FE $£40,887,0008 7T (20144 :
28,509,000 7)) + Ty BB T & L
KEABRERBRAZHEEE - 2
=t % 18 /85 18 23,088,000 i 7T (2014 4F -
8,304,000 7T ) AJ R i 4588« 25T
T 78 /5 48 144,513,000 7T (2014 4F -
106,957,000 70 ) MBI A - BIFERR
RAFANEm °
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B BHRRNE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS -

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
Group is obligated to make lump sum payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable
is dependent on the employees’ final salary and years
of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plan that are attributable
to contributions made by the Group. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations. The long service payments are paid out
from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2015
specifically designated for the Group’s employees was
completed by a qualified actuary, Towers Watson Hong
Kong Limited, using projected unit credit method.

34

ERBARE-—RUERE:

REZERBHR  AREEEIRE
FEAT  RERBAEEHRD ﬁiz
HETRERERIEZERRE SN —RMER
H o B3 IETJ%E?EWEEZ &%
TR REFHRME - WHREAEBRIK
ABIATRASE 2 R EhE 2 RE#E
g7 o NEEWER L EMEEFEREM
E%T,\sz,éi RBEXNBRA

¥ BEAKREZTFRRASES EZHE
,HHHE%%CO

AERBEMBEENBEARAA
BN EELAEKEAAEEREEM
B2 20153 A 31 HEHEE T -

(@ The amount recognised in the consolidated @ REEEEBBERERZNRIEN
balance sheet is as follows: T
Group
£H
2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Present value of defined ATBAEEZRE
benefit obligations 34,008 34,517

(b)  Movements in the net liability recognised in the

b) RNEEEESR

ERERCBEFE

consolidated balance sheet are as follows: BEHINT -
Group
£E
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
At 1 April w4818 34,517 37,914
Expenses recognised in the NEaEERERZAX
consolidated income
statement 2,752 3,314
Income recognised in the RErE 2E B ARE
consolidated statement of R Z WA
comprehensive income (3,261) 6,711)
At 31 March M3A31H 34,008 34,517
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34 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - 34 EERIEF—ERHEES
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) (88)
(c) Expenses recognised in the consolidated income ) RiFEEZRBERZAINT :

statement is as follows:

Group
&H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FET
Current service cost BIEAAR 75 & 1,873 2,792
Interest cost R B 879 522
2,752 3,314
Income recognised in the consolidated statement (d) REraz2ERARFRER ZBAL
of comprehensive income is as follows: ™
Group
&H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Remeasurements of employees B TEMETHEFTE
benefit obligations (3,261) (6,711)
The expense is recognised in the following line (e) BTN AERRATYERRE
items in the consolidated income statement: R
Group
%H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHIT
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEER 1,569 1,889
Administrative expenses 1T E A 1,183 1,425
2,752 3,314
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34 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS -
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued)

(f)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31
March 2015 (expressed as weighted average) are

34 ERBHRE-—RUEBES

(#8)
) ﬁA2015¢3H31E{EﬁHZEE%ﬁ
BRERE (AEFH2) 0T

as follows:
Group
L]
2015 2014
Discount rate Ah3A =X 1.9% 2.6%
Future salary increment RARF & IL08 4% 4%
Return of MPF balances BB EREIHRE 3% 3%
Impact on employee benefit obligations
HESBRMRENHTE
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
REREE R a%381m iR P
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 4.3% Increase by 4.5%
BRI XK 0.25% B 4.3% Ehn4.5%
Salary growth rate 0.25% Increase by 4.1% Decrease by 4.9%
HeEr%x 0.25% EiN41% WA 4.9%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a
change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated.

35 BANK BORROWINGS

A EBREDNTIRBHRZES - AT
BEMBREFTEER - R L b
BRTKRATRES L —LBREF AR
il

35 MITEM
Group Company
&E 2E]
2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
F#n TAT T TAT

Short-term bank borrowings 52 #iiR 17 & X 1,470,633 568,000 650,000 478,000

The Group’s bank borrowings were unsecured, of
which HK$900,633,000 (2014: HK$348,000,000)
were covered by corporate guarantees given by the
Company. The bank borrowings were due for repayment
within one month.

AEBZETERRSERRT EF
900,633,000/ 7T (20144 : 348,000,000
BIT) AR R AR 2 A REREEA -
RITEFN—EARZIEEE
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35

36

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 35 I7E8F;:(E\E)
Bank borrowings of HK$1,470,633,000 (2014: A 801,470,633,000/% T (2014 F ¢
HK$568,000,000) bore interest at floating rates. The 568,000,000 #7T) KR 1T & RILZ &) 7
interest rates of the bank borrowings ranged from KRB RITERZEMEN1.44%E
1.44% to 1.99% (2014: 1.46% to 1.97%) per annum. 1.99% (2014 F : 1.46% £1.97%) °
The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in the KEBZIRITERU T EMEETE
following currencies:
Group Company
=H 2F]
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
THT FHT FHET FHET
HK$ BT 1,295,000 568,000 650,000 478,000
us$ ET 175,633 - - -
1,470,633 568,000 650,000 478,000
The fair value of the Group’s bank borrowings HRTERNHRERE  BBETET
approximates their carrying amount, as the impact of X Bt AEBZRITERZARE
discounting is not significant due to their short-term EEARmMERS
maturities.
GOLD LOANS 36 REfdR

Gold loans were borrowings from banks which are
pledged with gold prices. They were designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2015, the gold loans are denominated in
USD, interest bearing at 1.2% per annum, with original
maturity of 2-3 months from date of inception.

The net unrealised gain on gold loans arising from
change in fair value of HK$8,687,000 (2014: Nil) has
been recognised in ‘other gain, net’ in the consolidated
income statement.

BE2EBEARTEN  XUESERE
- EEREAARBEMABSEZER
afE-

MR2015F3A31H @@ BENETET
B E1.2% 2 FFEGFE - RERMIBA
HEEF2 = 3E A RIHE -

ECHBEARBEEMMEEZRAEH
I 2% 7% %8 /58,687,000 JT (2014 4F -
\) IR REBRR [ Bl - 55
R o
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B BHRRNE

37 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

37 ZEHERER

FLOWS
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash B B 45 750 Al g 1) B EZIRE R
generated from operations: ZEERIT
2015 2014
HK$'000  HK$'000
TFET FHET
Profit before income tax B P15 15 B4 A 1,982,818 2,320,819
Amortisation of land use rights o b {sh PR AR 5 9,661 7,133
Depreciation of property, plant Y BELEETE
and equipment 146,766 115,604
Depreciation of investment properties REWETE 1,303 1,212
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - BER
plant and equipment Bl 755 2,530
Provision for long service payment ARG & B E 2,752 3,314
Unrealised gain on THEemIA
derivative financial instruments REIH W - (14,528)
Net realised gain on gold loans B BEECERNEFE (14,874) -
Net unrealised gain on gold loans B BEREHE WS FEE (8,687) -
Interest income A B A (48,874) (15,167)
Interest expenses FERXZ 20,474 2,844
Fair value gain on convertible bond MR ESZ A BEKE (9,655) -
Share of results of associates FE(EEEE R R EE 21,793 259
Operating profit before working EESF AL E T
capital changes 2,104,232 2,424,020
Increase in rental deposits HEZSEM (26,907) (33,401)
Increase in inventories FEIE N (1,176,030) (1,269,878)
Decrease in trade receivables, B HRKER - e
deposits, prepayments and TR FRIE Fo H A FE U
other receivables FORR 75,746 32,865
(Increase)/decrease in amount U, FE < B X R FR0E
due from/to associates (&), m (30,012) 5,839
Decrease in derivative financial THEeRIT AR
instruments 14,528 -
(Decrease)/increase in trade B SN - HAL B IR
payables, other payables Nt zRE CRid),/#Ehn
and accruals (75,599) 38,993
Net cash generated from operations & BEL 2R 4 F 58 885,958 1,198,438
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38 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

38 *&iE
Capital commitments (a) BEFKiE
Group
0]
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Contracted but not provided for: = 5] #4918 R 1E H #4E :
— property, plant and —E - BB KR
equipment 9,832 12,208
— acquisition of an associated ~ —WHE—REE AR
company - 245,000
— grant of shareholder’s loan —A—REERARERT
to an associated company REE - 100,000
— subscription of a convertible ~ —REAHBRES
bond - 57,000
Total capital commitments EEIHERELEE
contracted but not BB
provided for 9,832 414,208
As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, there M2015F 3 A31 HX 201443 A
are no capital commitments which are authorised 318 WEEFEERTNZER
but not contracted for. HAHE o
Commitments under operating leases (b) BEHEXIE
At 31 March 2015, the Group had future 20154 3A31H « NEEG+
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- REFRETA R CEHE
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and MARRREZN T 2 &IEAERNHAEE
buildings as follows: N
Group
%M@
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
THT FET
Not later than one year —FR 681,149 549,733
Later than one year and not —FHETBBRAF
later than five years 845,227 619,236
Later than five years HiE T F 6,025 13,209
1,532,401 1,182,178
The actual payments in respect of certain BTREMEEBRI IR LA

operating leases are calculated at the higher of the
minimum commitments as noted above and the
amounts determined based on a percentage of the
sales of the related outlets.

At AR R R AR IR AR S A B
BREDULMETERIBRE

e

= o
>t
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39

40

146

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had several
outstanding financial guarantee amounting to
HK$779,957,000 (2014: Nil) issued to several banks in
respect of banking facilities granted to an associate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook
(Control) Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which directly
owns 39.75% of the Company’s shares. The remaining
shares of the Company are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family including Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze,
Nancy are discretionary beneficiaries of the Wong's
Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust is the beneficial
owner of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee
Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which
is the beneficial owner of 36.72% of issued shares of
Luk Fook Control. The remaining shares of Luk Fook
Control are held by various shareholders.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the
Company.

(@) The Group has entered into supplementary
licensing and maintenance agreement with GS
Tech Company Limited (92% owned by the
Wong’s Family Trust) for acquiring a licence to
use certain computer programs and to receive
maintenance services fees. For the year ended
31 March 2015, licence fees of HK$1,394,000
(2014: HK$1,109,000) and maintenance services
fees of HK$3,135,000 (2014: HK$2,813,000) were
capitalised in the consolidated balance sheet and
charged in the consolidated income statement,
respectively.

39

40

BRAR

MR2015F3 A31 H » KN&E B % T B
BARMIRITRE RS TIRTETHR
BEMBEIRAT779,957,000/8 7T (2014
F|)o

REALTZXS

Apalz xERRAEANRBZER) AR
AEl(lR@BER]D  AREBHBR
HEAMKL AR BHEHEEAAT
39.75% & 0 o AN R F R T D o Ak F
ﬁo

HEFLAERERB(BEEEELE
MEBG L) AERREES(RE
D Z2EZHA - ZETAELER
ESTERAREPEBRITRAZELZ
BEAN HELHHBESTEARAAER
BB NRIEIR36.72% B BTG © N8
RSB TIROHBZZREEFS -

HEFLLE BARAEENERFLLT

AEBDHSELAERNEAERA
B(HEoo% EamERKRKEAH
BB RS HE - AFER
AT EMRRR 2R RS
Ri&E - HE 20153 A31 1t
FE - BT EEA1,394,0008 T
(20144 : 1,109,000 7T) R #1&
AR 7 £ 3,135,000 7T (2014 4F :
2,813,000 L) ED RN EE
ERBRENMLREABERAN
ﬁ/% °

(a)
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) Transactions with associates (b) HEREBATZRS
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P &E FET FHIT
Sales HE 0] 67,109 -
Subcontracting fee paid BENSBEER (i) 23,713 19,323
Rental income HEUWA (i) 455 564
Management fee income ERBIA (i) 846 1,042
Interest income on the ERT—REE QA
loan to an associate 2 F B UA 22 161 -
Notes: fisE -
0] Sales, subcontracting fee paid, rental income, 0] BIEEEHBEET 2 \%?MQHXZ%

(c)

40 REALTZE S (IR)

management fee income were charged at terms based on

mutual agreements.

(if) As mentioned in Note 39, the Group had on outstanding
financial guarantee amounting to HK$779,957,000 (2014:
Nil) issued to several banks in respect of banking facilities

& BENOBRER  HaWA -

BN -

(ii) BMANFTEES9  AEEA R THE QT

MIRTTRE (M TRITRITHRAREE
¥R B 779,957,000 7T (2014

granted to an associate. Fm) o
Year-end balances (c) E#RFEER
Group
=
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#ET FET
Loan to an associate ERT—REE QR
- non-current (Note 22) —JERDHA (P5E22) 83,160 -
Loan to an associate ERT—REE QR
— current (Note 22) — BNAR (FfsE22) 20,000 -
Amount due from an JEU — KB & A E)BRIE
associate (Note 21(iv)) (FF&E21(v)) 30,076 -
Amount due to an R —KEEE A FBRIE
associate (Note 21(iv)) (FF&E21(v)) (1,674) (1,771)
Company
N
2015 2014
HK$’°000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEU I B A FIBRIE
(Note 27) (FF3E27) 1,359,225 731,982
Amount due to a subsidiary JEA B A 7 BRTE
(Note 27) (FF3E27) 159,400 -
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40

41

148

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(d) Key management compensation
Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and senior management of
the Group. The compensation paid or payable to

(d)

MEALZZH (@)

FTEEEEMS

TEEEERERES (AITRIFNR
TEEF)RAKERRERASR -
SLEBREZREME N RENE

key management for employee services is shown EEBREZMEamT
below:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Directors’ fees E-Yokn 2,105 2,084
Salaries, allowances and e RMEEYRE
benefits-in-kinds 65,066 64,818
Performance and discretionary 1% &R IFBIG 3R 2 FEAT
bonuses 36,576 46,745
Contributions to pension plan  BKE 2R 572 551
104,319 114,198

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES
At 31 March 2015, the Company had the following

41 ERME L2 FFR

MR20156F3A31H » ARBIZFENE

principal subsidiaries: ACIFUNNE
Particulars of
Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company  Principal activities
ML BRiTRE/ SRS
BB EMEFEE  BEEREMUL FERE
2015 2014
Interests held directly: HERAFHER:
Luk Fook Investment (B.V.1.) Limited BVI HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
AERBREE 28T RERR
Interests held indirectly: MERFER :
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Authentication of gemstones
MEREETPOERAA Bk 2B EnEE
Fancy Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$12,100 100 100 Property holding
BRRABRATF A 12,1007 BENE
Ice Collection (International) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
KE (B BB AR 0 100787 products
RELHERTERR
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR

e MBHRRIEE

41 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

41 FRME2FFERE (&)

Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company  Principal activities
s/ BRITRE/ FRFME
BB BERMEXEE BiEERERL ITERY
2015 2014
Interests held indirectly: (Continued) HEHHHES : ()
Jewellworld.com Limited BVI HK$8,000,000 51 51 Investment holding, and provision
BKELRBV.)ERAT HBABREE 8,000,000/ of software development and
services relating to internet
REARR  REGHFER
HEERBRBRY
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong HK$100 a1 51 Investment holding, and provision
GEHR(BE)ERAH B 10057 of software development and
services relating to internet
REARR  REGHFEER
HEERBRARY
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 100 100 Gold bullion trading
NMEERARAA &E 14,000,000 7 BEMSK
Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of management services
NEEERRAA BE 28T to group companies and
wholesale distribution of gold
and jewellery products
RUEBRETEERAIRSE
PHESRABER
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Australia AUS$ 100,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Australia) Pty Limited B 100,00087T products in Australia
RENZESRABERTEER
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(HK) Company Limited BE 100/87T products
AERELT(FR)ARAH EERABERTERN
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Macau MOP 1,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Macao) Company Limited il 1,000,000 27T products in Macau
AEHEST(RM) ARAR REMREEERABERTELER
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Canada CA$ 100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Canada) Limited JIEYN 100 MEAT products in Canada

RNEANERE RABERTERH
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41 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41 FEREBLATFHFEE(E)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of

Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company  Principal activities
301 BRITRE/ FLFME
BB BERMEXEE BiEERERL ITERY
2015 2014

Interests held indirectly: (Continued) MEREES : ()

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Singapore $$1,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Singapore) Pte.Limited s 1,000,000 %7 A1%5 T products in Singapore
RITMB R EES RABENTEEH

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith USA USD100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(USA) Company Limited XE 10057 products in USA
REERZECRABERTERR

Luk Fook 3D Management Limited BVI HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
RBAARES 1AL REER

Max Forum Development Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Property holding

HEERERAF & 100787 BENE

Maxigood Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 93.3 933  Manufacturing and wholesale

EFIECEERA BE 3,000,000 distribution of jewellery products

RERHE N HREER

EMAREHBRAR Mainland China ~ HK$60,000,000 93.3 93.3  Manufacturing, wholesale, retailing of
HEIR 60,000,000 /% T gold and jewellery products and
provision of quality examination
services in Mainland China
REE SRS - #E  TEERR
FREERARREE2ETRE

EFE(BM) &HiBRAH" Mainland China HK$6,000,000 93.3 933 Manufacturing of jewellery
HEIA 6,000,000 7T products in Mainland China
REBEREEREEmR

EMHEEHERAA Mainland China ~ HK$35,000,000 100 100 Property holding in Mainland China
FER, 35,000,000 ReEREENE
NEER(EE)BRAT- Mainland China USD200,000 100 100 Wholesale of polished diamond
(formerly known as HEL R 200,000% 7T in Mainland China
EFIEEA(LE)BRAA) RAER BT EZER

(FRBHEEA (L8)ARAF)
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M5 ¥R Y o

41 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

41 FRME2FFERE (&)

Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BT/ BRITRE/ L VNGl R
BB BEMEFEE  EEREESM TEEE
2015 2014
Interests held indirectly: (Continued) MEHEES : (])
NERE (LR BRAF Mainland China ~ HK$29,750,000 100 100 Retaling of gold and jewellery
RENH 29,750,000 % 7T products in Beiing,
Mainland China
PR REEERRABER
BN RERRAFRAR- Mainland China HK$2,000,000 100 100 Trademark licensing, brand
RE R 2,000,000 7 building and promotion in
Mainland China
RN SEERE -
EIRRERRE
AMERERHEEE (R R AR Mainland China HK$8,000,000 100 100 Trademark licensing, brand
REIR 8,000,000 %L building and promotion in
Mainland China
ERER I EERRE -
BB RERERE
NeEfimiEct (EB)ERAA Mainland China ~ HK$50,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing, wholesale of
HEN 50,000,000 &7 gold and jewellery products in
Mainland China
ReBRh 2 RER
HEEERHEER
NEGEEH(ER)ERAR Mainland China ~ HK$50,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
HENH 50,000,00077T products in Mainland China
ReEmEEEL R
REEMTEER
NEEHRE(ER)ERAR Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Trademark licensing, brand
EIR 3,000,000 T building, promotion and

provision of quality examination

services in Mainland China
R BRI EHRRE 2R R

HEmEN R HE SR TR
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41 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41 FRME2FFRE (&)

Particulars of

Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company  Principal activities
301 BRITRE/ 3Nt
BB BERMEXEE BiEEREAL ITERY
2015 2014

Interests held indirectly: (Continued) MERHER : (#)

ER BURKENIERAG Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100

BB R AEH5,000,0007C

Manufacturing of gold products

BN BHERAREBRAT Mainland China RMB5,000,000 51 51 Manufacturing of gold products
HE A AR#5,000,0007 BEEMBE
EERERGEAHERAR" Mainland China ~ RMB10,000,000 100 - Wholesale of polished diamond and

HE R AK10,000,0007C jewellery products in Mainland China

REBR IR T TEER RAEER
NERE (BN ERAE Mainland China ~ RMB10,500,000 100 -
HE A AE#10,500,0007

Manufacturing, wholesale of gold
products in Mainland China

RPBERBRE  HEREER

+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned + ZEMBAR/NPBEAMAKLZ 2INE D
enterprises in Mainland China. E 3

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies BEEGBEEN - LA RARHEE

operate principally in Hong Kong. REBLLEZER -

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BEERR ERFAIIARRIMEBRRE
BUHAERXEBRTELIBRAEH
BEFEZEER  EFAL - =H
HiMBAR ZHBEESERBRT
< o
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